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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – MAY 26, 2011

(Time Noted – 7:00 PM)

MR. McKELVEY: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA for May 26th 2011 to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board then will ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all of the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. Then Board will then consider the applications in order heard. The Board will try to render a decision on all applications this evening; but the Board may take up to 62 days to reach a determination. And we request if you have a cell phones to please turn the cell phone off or put them on vibrate. Roll call. 

PRESENT ARE:

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT: GRACE CARDONE


ALSO PRESENT: 
DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

                                    GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE 

(Time Noted – 7:02 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MAY 26 2011             (Time Noted – 7:02 PM) 



ROBERT HELSEL 



2 TINA DRIVE, NBGH







(47-1-55.1) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a rear deck on the residence.  

Mr. McKelvey: The first applicant this evening Robert Helsel.               

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notices for all the new applications being heard this evening were published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, May 17th and in the Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday, May 18th. This applicant sent out fifteen registered letters, fifteen were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. McKelvey: I’d like to also state that all Board Members have visited all the sites. Please state your request.

Mr. Helsel: My name is Rob Helsel resident of 2 Tina Drive and I’m asking for an appeal or a permit for an area variance for a standard 16 x 12 deck. A… and I believe its beyond the offset. I thinking looking at the a…looking at the plans its about maybe six or seven feet beyond that point. There’s an existing a…a…cement patio that’s…that’s already beyond that and this is the only exit from the back so that would be the only logical place to put the…put the deck. It doesn’t pose any environmental hazards or any a…block any views from the, you know, the neighborhood that it would if anything enhance the property and the neighborhood. So I’m asking for an exception.

Mr. McKelvey: Do we have any questions from the Board?  

Ms. Drake: Would the patio or the deck…would the deck extend beyond the patio that’s there now?

Mr. Helsel: No, I believe there will be from what the contractor said about two or three feet left at the edge so it would be…it would before it would be the end of it so about two or three feet. 

Ms. Drake: O.K. thank you. 

Mr. Donovan: Can I put Jerry on the spot real quick? In the a, just for clarification, in the chart it indicates a 12-foot variance but it says existing is…it says the rear yard…minimum rear yard is 40 proposed as 33. I think it may just be an oversight because the existing is 45 and I just think that the magnitude of the variance in fact may be reduced, to be 7-feet instead of 12-feet. Am I right or am I not going to make to through May? 

Mr. Canfield: Yeah, the existing rear yard setback is 45.1 that’s on the plot plan.

Mr. Donovan: Right and the minimum required is 40.

Mr. Canfield: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: And he is proposing 33? 

Mr. Canfield: Once you put the new proposed deck on it will be 33.

Mr. Donovan: So the variance from the required will be 7 right, not 33?

Mr. McKelvey: Not 33 yeah. Not 12.

Mr. Donovan: Not 12. 

Mr. Canfield: Correct. Not 12 correct. 

Mr. Donovan: That’s good for you.  

Mr. Helsel: O.K. thank you.

Mr. McKelvey: Any comments from the public? Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Eaton: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Mr. McKelvey: Yes

Mr. McKelvey: We’ll make our decision later.

Mr. Helsel: O.K. 





(Time Noted – 7:04 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MAY 26, 2011   (Resumption for decision: 9:50 PM) 



ROBERT HELSEL 



2 TINA DRIVE, NBGH







(47-1-55.1) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a rear deck on the residence.  

Mr. McKelvey: We’ll resume the meeting now, the first item is Robert Helsel it’s for an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a rear deck on the residence. Do we have any discussion? 

Ms. Eaton: It won’t interfere with any of the neighbors, there’s woods to the back of him and I don’t see where it would present a problem.

Mr. Manley: There were no objections from the neighbors.

Mr. Maher: And just to clarify the a…the variance will be for 17 ½% not the 30 listed.

Ms. Drake:  I like you Mike.

Mr. McKelvey: Do I have a motion?

Mr. Manley: I’ll so move.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Mr. McKelvey: Roll Call. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call. 

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Mr. McKelvey: Yes

Mr. McKelvey: That’s a Type II Action under SEQRA.
PRESENT ARE:

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

            MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT:   GRACE CARDONE

ALSO PRESENT: 
DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY
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 (Time Noted – 9:52 PM)
ZBA MEETING - MAY 26, 2011             (Time Noted – 7:04 PM) 



34 NORTH PLANK ROAD LLC./

34 NORTH PLANK ROAD, NBGH

   EUGENE & MARIE CURRIER

(80-7-25) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the lot area, lot width and a front yard setback to convert an existing residential building to an office.    

Mr. McKelvey: The next item on the agenda 34 North Plank Road LLC., Eugene & Marie Currier.              

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out nineteen registered letters and a…thanks Anthony, fifteen were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. Coppola: Good evening. Is this on? Can you hear me?

Ms. Gennarelli: No it has to be on. Can you check and see if the light is on? Jerry did you turn it off?

Mr. Canfield: Yeah I did.

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes, it’s being recorded now.

Mr. Coppola: Thank you, my name is A.J. Coppola; I’m the project architect. I’m here representing Gene Currier; he’s the owner of 34 North Plank Road and Scott from John J. Lease Realtors is also here both will answer any questions that the Board or the public might have. What we are proposing to do is to legally convert 34 North Plank Road to a business. In fact it has been used as a business for the last twenty years. I’m going to go through a…

Ms. Gennarelli: Can you hold that (mic) up a little?

Mr. Coppola: …some of the chronology from a…starting in 1990 until present day. In 1990 an application was made to this Board, the Zoning Board to convert this building from a house into an office. And at that time there was a swimming pool in the front yard and the footprint of the building was basically the same as it is today. A…the applicants were Montgomery and Ross and that variance was granted a…and we had that resolution from 1990 to a…convert this into an office. Those applicants apparently never followed up with the Planning Board and never followed up with the Building Department to as they were required to do to make that approval a…binding so in effect while went ahead and started using the…this building as an office legally it was never a…finalized. So on the site plan which is largely the way it exists today there is an existing site plan which shows a swimming pool and their proposed site plan which shows the improvements to the property. And those improvements include a parking lot in the front, a parking lot in the rear and a…basically that…that’s it. And there’s a handicap parking space too. So those improvements were a…done somewhere along the way probably in the early ‘90’s and the building has been in continual use as an office from that time. Gene Currier purchased the building about eight years ago a…it was occupied as an office at that time, never knowing that it was not an office and now in a…as of the last year 2010 its been under contract to sell as an office. This time when it was under contract to sell a…the Building Department a…I think through title or however these…these issues came up and the Building Department file a…was pulled and it was realized that a…that paperwork had never properly gone through. So here we are, we’re twenty years later starting this process all over again, back to the Zoning Board because that Zoning approval lapsed. We started this process a…actually started the process in the Building Department a…found the violations there continued this process at the Planning Board, went to a Planning Board meeting in March of this year. The Planning Board referred us to your Board and if we’re successful we’ll go back to the Planning Board for site plan approval and then on to the Building Department to address the Building Code issues for the property. So that’s it in a nutshell we are just asking for three area variances. The property is located in a B zone the area variances for that…the area variances are for lot area 15,000 is required, the existing lot is just below that so there is a variance of 818 sq. ft. Lot width is required to be 100, we have 96 so 4-feet on that. And a…one of the front yards is only 5.8 feet it is required to be 40 and that variance is just over 34 feet. So there’s two front yards here on North Plank Road or…or Route 32 and Winding Lane. So again all the footprint is basically been the same for the last twenty years we’re not proposing anything new. The parking is conforming. The use is conforming and the other Bulk Table requirements are all conforming. So that’s it in summary and again a…the owner Gene or Scott from John J. Lease would be happy answer any of the questions you might have.

Mr. McKelvey: Any questions from the Board?  

Mr. Hughes: I don’t know if is a question or…I’ve been reading the volumes of papers that have been generated over this project over that twenty year period that you talk about. And I don’t know what meeting you were at but the records of the meeting that I have say that you’re supposed to be here for seven different reliefs tonight in the form of variances tonight including this. You’re supposed to have 40,000 sq. ft. and you have 14,182; you’re supposed to have 150 feet and you have 96; you’re supposed to have 150 feet and you have 148.75 in depth; you’re supposed to have a rear setback and you only have 33 when 65 are required; you’re supposed to have one side yard 19 feet existing and 30 feet required; and both side yards 83 required and you have 53 existing. On top of that and I’ll quote Chairman Ewasutyn from the Planning Board and the letter that came from the Planning Board’s attorney where it says the current owner has owned the property for eight years and they were not involved in the original application. Mr. Donnelly, the chairman…or the Planning Board’s attorney states that its all preexisting but however that you need a use variance because this building is not complying and it changes the use. Now I don’t know where it went from this to what you’re presenting and then there’s also a discrepancy where your chart represents a B district and it says its in an IB district and I’d like to have all that stuff cleaned up before we go any further but even before it gets to that there is a map here that shows the parking which apparently half of the parking space is out in the Town road and you’re indicating that you’re providing a certain number of parking spaces and I don’t know how you are going to add that up with two of the three or three of the spaces that you’re indicating not even being on your property. So I find a lot of things here that don’t add up and I’d like to bring it to the attention of the public and my colleagues on the Board and maybe we can get to speak to somebody to see where these discrepancies were created. Moreover there’s a letter from Mr. Donnelly that goes on about this and apparently someone asked for a way to work around this or another shot on the table a…back to that use instance, this is a residence that was never complied a…they received a preliminary approval, they never got their site plan, they never filed any Permits, they never had any inspections and now you’re looking to put five pounds of stuff in a two pound bag and I don’t see how it can fly. 

Mr. Coppola: Well I…I beg to differ but we’re only looking for what’s there. We’re not looking for an increase in the footprint at all or an increase in the impervious area at all. And if I could address some of your concerns a large part of your concern I think is the confusion over the Bulk Tables and I believe you started by referring to the Bulk Table from the IB zone which was correct twenty years ago. 

Mr. Hughes: No, I’m citing all of these things from the April 7th’s meeting of this year.

Mr. Coppola: Well…from the Planning Board.

Mr. Hughes: It’s right here in print everything I just put on the record is here in print. 

Mr. Coppola: O.K. well let me explain that, when we went to the Planning Board we went with the existing site plan, the one from twenty years ago. Basically a…the follow-up to the Planning Board meeting was for a…Mike Donnelly to write a…a…a letter referring this a…this a…this a…application to the Zoning Board. The Bulk Table from that night was incorrect. It was the IB Bulk Table the one from twenty years ago. Between that Planning Board meeting my discussions with the planner a…a…Brian Cox and back to Mike and through a…our…a…application with Betty we actually made several…several times coming to Betty is when we actually finally got it right and that’s…that’s all on me those were…that was my error in bringing that plan to the Planning Board, the twenty year old plan. We revised the new Bulk Table, which Betty has, the IB Bulk Table, is based on the B Bulk Table, which to my knowledge only shows three variances that was confirmed in documentation with Brian and that was from documentation with Mike Donnelly who both reissued a…revised letters to that effect. 

Mr. Hughes: Do you have those letters?

Mr. Coppola: I can dig them out. I think they are part of the application.

Ms. Gennarelli: They should be. Yes, they should be in the packet.

Mr. McKelvey: There is a memorandum in the packet. 

Mr. Coppola: And to address the issue of the…of the parking, there are two…two existing parking spaces which are more or less half on Winding Lane…a…the Planning Board did not refer us for parking a…they’re fairly ready to accept those and that was not part of our referral. They saw those there but that’s really all I can say about that.

Mr. Hughes: Are you suggesting that they’re not ruling on it one way or another knowing its out in the road?

Mr. Coppola: I’ll…I’ll defer to the Board or to the…or to the Building Department or to the Planning Board whether those two spaces should be…should be there…to be counted or not.

Mr. Hughes: Well if it’s not on your property I don’t know how you could design and indicated that you can maintain it. Let’s back up a little bit, if you’re required to have fourteen spaces and two of them aren’t on your property how can you do that? 

Mr. Coppola: A…a…a…I’ll repeat what I just said.

Mr. Hughes: The other thing that I see is…I’m not cross-examining you or putting up a trick question. I want to know the answer. Also on the other road you show a great big curly curve that’s out in the road too that’s not on your property…

Mr. Coppola: This is not my plan this is the one from twenty years ago so I…I’m not showing anything here. This is the one from twenty years ago and I believe its accurate in terms of what’s been built. 

Mr. Hughes: Well that could be but I…I would like to approve something that’s current and has a real plan to it and not something that we’re going to chisel that on a pipe dream.

Mr. Coppola: I’m not sure what the pipe dream is. 

Mr. Hughes: Neither am I. We have a lot more in common that you’d believe. 

Mr. Coppola: I’m sure we do. 

Mr. Hughes: I don’t…I don’t get it. I mean and are you saying that Mr. Cox misspoke through all this even after they went through and ruled on it?

Mr. Coppola: No, go back to see what I said five minutes ago the error is with me.

Mr. Hughes: I hear you. I hear you.

Mr. Coppola: The error is with me. I’m not blaming anybody else. It’s totally with me. 

Mr. Hughes: I’m reading the letter here that was the minutes of the Planning Board where they ruled on this.

Mr. Coppola: Right because he was looking at the IB zone Bulk Table that was presented at the Planning Board that…that’s why that started.

Mr. Hughes: So maybe I don’t have…

Ms. Gennarelli: Do you have the letter from May 3rd Ron?

Mr. Hughes: I don’t have that here.

Mr. Donovan: There’s a letter May 3rd from Mike Donnelly indicating there’s three variances required and those are the three that are reflected a…on the application on the map that’s been submitted.

Mr. Hughes: I got it now. O.K. I recall reading this now but I didn’t realize it was from him. A…I don’t know, there’s a lot of holes in that plan from where I sit. Now even at that the only change difference that I see from the B to the IB is that the lot coverage goes from 85% down to 80 and all the rest of the stuff still has the same problem. Counsel are we looking at 40,000 sq. ft. here? 

Mr. Donovan: Well…

Ms. Gennarelli: I think there is something from Joe Mattina in there also.

Mr. Donovan: Well there is but I believe Ron we’re looking at 15,000 sq. ft.

Mr. McKelvey: 15,000.

Mr. Canfield: Mr. Chairman perhaps I can clarify some of these questions. What we should be looking at is this is in a B zone. We should be looking at Table 7, Schedule 7 which is a B district. Under permitted uses subject to site plan review a…business and professional parks, research offices and banks lot area is 15,000 sq. ft. and if you just go across it will give you the other requirements. The other question that you raised Ron on the original application before the Planning Board back in March, as Anthony had said, a…you are correct the original assumption from the Planning Board and my review also was the additional variances which encompassed also side yards had a combined side yards but if you look at the site plan this is a corner lot it has two front yards in that scenario the applicant is given the option of which is the a…the rear and the side. With that being said that eliminates or negates the need for side yard variances.

Mr. Hughes: That was where had you picked the front door to be?

Mr. Canfield: I’m sorry.

Mr. Hughes: Where have the picked the front door to be?   

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me Ron, could you pull your mic in a little?

Mr. Canfield: They don’t have a choice of where the front door is, the street side of the building is the front yard and in this case because its an intersection it has two front yards for zoning purposes. So that negates the need for side yards and total side yards setbacks. That’s why Mr. Donnelly, this was brought to Donnelly’s office a…and the May revision came out which actually the attachment is our a…form that we utilized. If you see the similarity to it the lot area and the lot width and the front yard those dimensions came from our department so we sanctioned that and is correct. So what’s before you is three variances for lot area, lot width and front yard.

Mr. Hughes: And what about the reference to the use by the Chairman? This is a change of a use that’s from a residence that was never changed formally.

Mr. Canfield: Again going to the B Bulk Table existing 1-family, existing 1-families are permitted in a B. What triggers the actual need for a site plan review is the change…

Mr. Hughes: To the office.

Mr. Canfield: …to the office. The change of use constitutes a site plan review, which sends it to the Planning Board. At that time that’s when it was discovered of all the non-conformities also the site plan it loses any existing non-conforming protection that’s what brings it before you coupled with additionally back in 1990 the original process was never completely followed through. 

Mr. Hughes: So they got the variance they came for that night and then they never followed up on anything else…?

Mr. Canfield: That’s correct.  

Mr. Hughes: …and whatever’s been done in there since…

Mr. Canfield: Back in 1990 these variances were granted a…but they never followed up on the rest of the site plan.

Mr. Hughes: …and so whatever’s gone on in that building from 1990 to forward has been done without Permits and without any inspections or anything else?

Mr. Canfield: That’s correct. That’s correct. 

Mr. Hughes: And these guys are all realtors?

Mr. Coppola: I think the building was used as…

Ms. Gennarelli: Anthony, you need the microphone.

Ms. Drake: Do you want to say that again into the microphone please?

Mr. Coppola: A…I think the building was last used as a realty office.

Ms. Gennarelli: Whoever is going to speak…

Mr. McKelvey: Please use the mic. 

Ms. Gennarelli: …identify yourself with the microphone and speak into the microphone otherwise it won’t be in the record. Could you please identify yourself?

Mr. Currier: What’s the question?

Ms. Gennarelli: Please identify yourself and then whatever you’d like to…

Mr. Currier: I’m Gene Currier the owner of 34 North Plank Road.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. and your comment was that it was…?

Mr. Currier: It was used as a real estate office (Inaudible) Currier Lazier real estate.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Coppola: I forgot to mention that I believe this has been taxed as an office. It’s…the…the designation on the tax assessor, I believe, is a commercial designation so, we believe its been taxed as an office for a certain number of years. 

Mr. Hughes: Is the building hooked up to municipal water and sewer?

Mr. Coppola: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: Is that a real yes, sir?

Mr. Coppola: A…yes, I believe it is. 

Mr. Hughes: I…

(Inaudible)

Mr. Coppola: Oh, I’m…

Mr. McKelvey: Yes it is according to this.

Mr. Coppola: Do you know that Gene?

(Inaudible)

Mr. Coppola: O.K.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. I’m sorry, could you stand up and just identify yourself for the record?

Mr. Stumer: Scott Stumer, John J. Lease Real Estate, a…I’ll look on the computer. I do that know there’s Town water there. I am not sure about sewer.  

Mr. Coppola: The old…the older map does…does show the septic system but I do not know if that’s in use or not.

Mr. McKelvey: This…this sheet, Jerry, shows water and sewer. 

Mr. Hughes: You mean somebody checked it off?

Mr. McKelvey: Somebody checked water and sewer on that.

Ms. Burgess: Excuse me, Street, Town of Newburgh, my name Margo Burgess and we do not have sewers. We are right across the street from this area.

Mr. McKelvey: O.K. then there’s a mistake here. 

Mr. Maher: Well in Brian Cox’ letter he utilizes Municipal water and individual septic.

Ms. Burgess: We do have sewer…septic, absolutely.

Mr. Hughes: So I would like some real confirmation on the answers so I tell they’re not reassured answers. The gentleman in the audience admitted he is not really sure so I would like the Building Department to check out if they are and if it was to be considered as a commercial installation I wouldn’t recommend that it be done unless they were connected to both water and sewer.

Mr. Coppola: We will have to go back to the Building Department for both a…as part of our Building Permit a…I could tell you this that the…the sewage rate would be less for office than for a residence. 

Mr. Hughes: I’m not concerned about that. I’m concerned about the wells and the septics in the neighborhood than what a commercial installation might do in that area. As I read here further there are so many discrepancies in this application and so much paperwork going back and forth and this is all in the last two months. The Planning Board Chairman, the Planning Board attorney, the project history, I…I just…to me you’re trying to get too much into a tight area and the I look at the plan and it appears that there’s eight offices in this place? 

Mr. Coppola: Let me I can show you that…show the Board that.

Mr. Hughes: Have you calculated your water consumption?

Mr. Coppola: No. You mean for this use as an office?

Mr. Hughes: Sure.

Mr. Coppola: That…that would not be…that would not be a design issue at all, I can tell you that, for this use as an office.

Mr. Hughes: So how many offices?

Mr. Coppola: Well, there’s two floors, there’s 2135 sq. ft. on the first floor and there’s a small second story of 659 sq. ft. There’s also a basement which is below grade which we’re not showing so your total square footage around 2800 sq. ft.

Mr. Hughes: There was another not in here that because you’re at that figure that you’re not exempt and that’s a non-issue at this point. I was wondering what the basement what’s the basement going to be used for?

Mr. Coppola: The basement has been used for storage and that’s all it would be used for.

Mr. Hughes: Is there a water problem in the basement?

Mr. Coppola: I do not know. 

Ms. Drake: Jerry, is there sewer in that area for them to connect to?

Mr. Canfield: Mr. Mattina has on the sheet that yes, there is but I have to be quite honest with you I don’t believe that there is. I can verify that. I don’t think there is.

Mr. Hughes: There’s that private sewer line that runs up 300.

Mr. Canfield: That’s a private sewer line from the 9W up to...

Mr. Hughes: From the diner up to Gardnertown.

Mr. Canfield: …Mid Valley Mall. A…that’s a private line that only, I believe, a few of those commercial a…occupancies such as the Lexus (Alexis), Burger King and used to be Mamma’s (Mom’s) those were the only ones, I believe, that were in…tied into that line.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: But I don’t believe it’s commercially out into that area but I can verify.

Mr. Hughes: It goes on to that road that goes between Grimm’s Farm and Gardnertown Road between McDonald’s and whatever that is…Auto Zone. That’s where the connection goes into the Town system.

Mr. Canfield: Yeah, but that’s further west than this property.  

Mr. Hughes: It goes right by this building. My…my question is back to the main event here. Can he connect to Municipal water and sewer or the private sewer somehow? If you’re going to have all that office in there and you’ve got a septic system for a three bedroom house you’ll be out there in twenty months it will be up to your ears.

Mr. Coppola: Well this is an issue that the Planning Board’s engineer looked and this is not an issue that came up on his review and I’m sure if they think it is an issue it’ll come up when I…we go back to the Planning Board. So I don’t think it’s going to be an issue. We can ask them when we go back to the Planning Board.   

Mr. Donovan: If I can, I want to be clear, what’s there now? 

Mr. Coppola: Physically?

Mr. Donovan: Physically.

Mr. Coppola: A…a two…two…a two-story building.

Mr. Donovan: Occupied or unoccupied?

Mr. Coppola: I’m sorry, it’s been unoccupied since December of last year, late last year so it’s currently under contract…contract to sell.

Mr. Donovan: And what’s going to be…what’s going to be different if a site plan approval is issued if the variances are granted by this Board and the site plan approval is issued what’s going to be different than what’s there now?    

Mr. Coppola: On the interior we’ll have to conform…

Mr. Donovan: Don’t care. What’s going to be different on the outside? 

Mr. Coppola: O.K. we’re going back to the Planning Board. My indication from the Planning Board’s first set of comments is this will largely be the same as it is right now, the parking, the handicap accessibility, the landscaping, the site lighting. I don’t think they are going to ask for anything other than what is there now.

Mr. Donovan: Right now, you’re not going to a…you’re not changing the lot width?

Mr. Coppola: No, there’s no increase in the footprint, there’s no increase in the lot, there’s no increase in the surface area.

Mr. Donovan: So you’re not changing the front yard, there’s no expansion of the existing footprint?

Mr. Coppola: Correct. 

Mr. Maher: Anthony, you said that was the original plan from 1990?

Mr. Coppola: Correct, yes.

Mr. Maher: So there has been no updated survey done since that point?

Mr. Coppola: No.

Mr. Manley: Has the a…garage that’s indicated as a garage, has that been finished at all?

Mr. Coppola: That…that’s part of the plan, yes, that’s part of the office space so...

Mr. Manley: Is it…is it finished now?

Mr. Coppola: Yes.

Mr. Manley: It was utilized as an office that garage area?

Mr. Coppola: It has been, yes. So there are parts of the interior here that the Building Department doesn’t have record of. I don’t remember if it’s the garage or the addition back here but those things I will have to address when we go back to them for our Building Permit.

Mr. Hughes: Is there water or a toilet in that garage?

Mr. Coppola: There is no bathroom in that garage. 

Mr. Hughes: Jerry, how do you do that with a detached building? 

Mr. Canfield: (Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: He says there’s no sewer or water in the garage that’s being used as an office space and it seems we have a discontinuance here it seems as well between three different types of businesses. There was…that was a house it belonged to the Martins way back…

Mr. Canfield: I don’t understand your question though. What’s the significance of the water in an office?

Mr. Hughes: Well he says the garage has been refinished to be used as office space. Can you do that without utilities?

Mr. Canfield: Yeah but as long as you provide heat. You meet the heat, light and ventilation requirements. If there’s no water closets, no sinks or anything, no need for water in there it’s a possibility. As long as there’s not a…

Mr. Hughes: There’s no Permits on this thing for anything since it was a residence? 

Mr. Canfield: Not that I’m aware of…no. 


Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Canfield: Also if we could back up…also in our packet is a…the Orange County assessor’s the property description report and they list under utilities, sewer type private, water supply commercial public. So there is Town water to the building and it’s an independent sewer…septic system. 

Mr. McKelvey: So there was a mistake on the sheet when Joe checked…

Mr. Canfield: Yes, that’s…

Mr. McKelvey: …off sewer?

Mr. Canfield: …correct.

Mr. Donovan: And probably Jerry that would be in the approximate SDS location on the map, right?

Mr. Canfield: That’s correct. It’s the only place it’ll fit.

Mr. Donovan: Could have looked there earlier though, right? And figure it out.

Mr. McKelvey: I think on that property where Mom’s Restaurant is Joe Bonura said he put that sewer line in.

(Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: He did. 

Mr. McKelvey: Is there any questions from the public? Your name?

Ms. Mccullum: Ellen Mccullum, Street, Town of Newburgh, I’m across from this building. This building is actually one that was sold to Martins by my uncle to my knowledge, sounds very confusing because what I was told is that it was never changed and that it was still zoned the way it originally was. As a matter of fact, I’m a little surprised when I heard something about a parking area in the back that was a driveway that the Martins put it and occasionally people park the route of people there but they are out in the road and its wrong. That area to me is…is…really a problem. I don’t know what kind of business is going to go in there and that concerns me. A…it…it is apparent there was two fronts now, you can call it whatever you want I guess, that’s a big concern to me. In terms of traffic in that area it’s horrendous that’s a cut-through through Winding Lane through Meadow Street. I mean, this is really having a…in my opinion, is devaluates the property there. I am very concerned about it and I’m very concerned about a change in any kind of the zoning. I came before the Zoning Board back when the property owned by Waters which is two doors down went from a…from a house to…it was going to be a gift shop. I was told by the Board it would never become a restaurant, it would never become a food place and now it’s the Bagel Shop and of course, that doesn’t look well for the longest time. Recently they painted it, I believe a…so I’m very concerned about this and I definitely would hope that the Board would take that into consideration. I…I…I think the area there looks very bad on North Plank Road to begin with and we’ve added truthfully created a really…a traffic problem in an area that can’t handle the traffic that its handling now. So if you’ve got a front on Winding Lane this is going to add more to this area not to mention that you can’t get out of Winding Lane to get onto 32 to begin with so I am very concerned and I would that the Board would a…take that into consideration. I did speak to another of one of my neighbors I don’t know whether they are here tonight but they all feel very strongly about it. So I would…I would want you to a…consider that. Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: Did you understand my concern about the parking spaces out on the other street and in effect you’re making two entrances there and both of those entrances the way they are depicted on this plan are out in the roadways?

Mr. Coppola: A…let me just…let’s try to address that a…if I could? A…Jerry, parking would be calculated at one per two hundred square feet for offices?

Mr. Canfield: Yes, that’s correct a…in office space the calculation in leaseable floor area under 20,000 sq. ft. is one per two hundred square feet and I did briefly calculate this out, there’s fourteen spaces required.

Mr. Hughes: And you have just fourteen spaces with those two spaces out in the road there? Including one ADA and thirteen regular parking spaces?

Mr. Coppola: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: Do you intend to continue the use of that garage or could that be your parking spaces to offset the penalty that you’re looking at here by not having enough space?

Mr. Coppola: A…we don’t gain anything by that, I mean, there are two spaces in front of the garage so you couldn’t count the spaces in the garage and then the two spaces outside the garage I don’t think.

Mr. Hughes: Well no I’m not suggesting that. I’m saying to remove the garage and make a better parking lot design.

Mr. Coppola: I’m only going to get two spaces in there however its configured I believe. 

Mr. Maher: But if remove the garage square footage floor area then you’re required to have less parking spaces.  

Mr. Coppola: A…that…that…that would be true a…that would be…that would be the equivalent two spaces. I mean, I’m going to let Gene and Scott address that as far as the loss of the square footage. They’re asking them…you remove the garage.  

(Inaudible)

Mr. Stumer: With removing the garage you’re basically making the project unsellable a… it is the footprint that it is right now and the offer that’s on the table a…I guess I could be so open, its from the contiguous property, the Doctor’s office right behind and we’re all up here stating that there’s a problem with the building being on 32 and being commercial yet on Winding Lane the contiguous property in the neighborhood is a commercial building. So Mr. Currier’s building is surrounded by commercial properties, it’s in a B zone a…I guess that’s it. 

Ms. Mccullum: Can I ask a question? 

Ms. Gennarelli: Could you just go to the mic?

Ms. Mccullum: Ellen Mccullum, I’m listening to what you are saying, to my knowledge, and maybe I’m wrong but the property of Dr. Mallicks that also was supposedly zoned as for a doctor or a lawyer’s, an office only, to my knowledge, or…or a residence. I wasn’t aware it could be just commercial or could be anything.

Mr. Stumer: (Inaudible) Powelton Farm subdivision…I believe the whole Powelton Farm subdivision is supposed to be that way but when you go up North Plank Road again you have the muffler place you have, you know, so basically everything that’s on 32 should not be there then. I think the Powelton Farms calls for either doctor’s or lawyers’ office a…if this deal continues and goes through it will be a doctor’s office a…if this deal doesn’t go through due to the lack of approval a…then I can’t say. 

Mr. McKelvey: That was going to be my question do you know who is going to occupy it though?

Mr. Stumer: A…like I said currently the doctor, Dr. Mallick and her husband who own the contiguous property due have the current offer on the property and they look to have one of their operations move into that building to expand and still keep the other building is what they have told me so far and that’s the contiguous neighbor like I said. 

Mr. Coppola: Just to address the parking issue, I’m going to throw something at the Board. If the Board was not inclined to accept the spaces the way they are we do have room to…to move those spaces you’d have to…they’d have to add a…some pavement closer to the house but we could add a…pavement to bring those parking spaces on to the property. I can see doing that. I mean the Board…if the Board didn’t want to grant that variance then we would just…

Mr. Donovan: Just to be clear that’s not in front of us this evening, we don’t have an application or we didn’t notice this for a…for a parking variance. That’s an issue you are going to confront in the Planning Board if you don’t…I mean I frankly find myself struggling to say this but I think I agree with Mr. Hughes on this. You have issue with your parking…and I feel the same way…with your parking off your property. I mean, I think that is going to be a problematic for the Planning Board.

Mr. Coppola: Well I mean…

Mr. Donovan: But I mean so I think you are going to have to find another place to put them but its not in front of us…

Mr. Coppola: Well…

Mr. Donovan: …this evening.

Mr. Coppola: I mean maybe the way to handle that is to…if the Board was so inclined to review and approve what’s in front of you, the three variances that are, make the recommendation to the Planning Board that we have to address that. I’m going back to the Planning Board anyway, they’ll see that recommendation and I’ll address it by moving the parking spaces in.

Mr. Donovan: And that’s up to the Board. You could do that.

Mr. Hughes: That would be out of our finger grip at that point if that stuff…

Mr. Coppola: Well…

Mr. Hughes: …were allowed to be…let me finish this…

Mr. Coppola: …go ahead.

Mr. Hughes: …Anthony. I don’t want to shock you twice in one night counsel but maybe we could display some common sense here and if this is going to be a contiguous owner and we erase the line between the buildings and make one complex and rearrange the whole parking.

Mr. Coppola: Well I don’t think we want to do that.

(Inaudible audience member)

Mr. Hughes: Well if you’re reluctant to do that, we might be reluctant to approve this project then… 

Mr. Coppola:  I mean I can’t see that at all.

Mr. Hughes: …I mean where are we going?

(Inaudible audience member)

Ms. Gennarelli: Scott.

Mr. McKelvey: Use the mic please.

Mr. Stumer: Scott Stumer again, I can’t speak to that because I can’t speak for the people that have the offer on the table.

Mr. Hughes: Well that’s your real estate business that’s not our concern. Just look at the big picture here. Do you want to get your approval on a contiguous erasing of the property line and make a nice complex that everybody can live with? Or do you want to try to stuff five pounds of dung in a two-pound bag. 

Mr. Coppola: I mean to be perfectly honest you keep saying that but this has been here for twenty years I just don’t…

Mr. Hughes: Well that doesn’t mean that it’s good.

Mr. Coppola: …understand that analogy at all.  

Mr. Hughes: No, huh?

Mr. Coppola: The building, the impervious space, its all been here and been in use. The traffic, I mean, none of that has changed.

Mr. Hughes: I…I understand that…

Mr. Coppola: I think I just don’t understand the meaning.

Mr. Hughes: …that doesn’t mean that it’s good or that it’s right. 

Mr. Coppola: But that thing that’s right or wrong I just don’t understand that comment you said it three times now. 

Mr. Hughes: No it was only twice. Don’t exaggerate any more…

Mr. Stumer: The fact that the Town…

Mr. Hughes: …than you normally do.

Mr. Stumer: …the Town has looked at as a commercial building for the last twenty years, in my belief, they’ve been coming out and doing fire inspections as if it was a commercial building and collecting their fee for that. I…I…I think, you know, Mr. Currier, unfair to Mr. Currier because his Title Company did not pick this up. The purchaser that he is now selling it to their Title Company picked it…if…it…it showed an open Permit so Mr. Currier trying to do the proper due diligence asked me to go out to the Building Department. I went and met with Joe. We thought it was just an open Permit for a window that was put into the front until we started looking into it further a…obviously we are here today because it went very far but Mr. Currier is doing everything that he can and as diligently as he can to try to make this so the next person can buy it as a commercial building like he bought it. 

Mr. Maher: When he purchased the property was the garage used as an office at the time?

Mr. Stumer: I don’t think Mr.…and Mr. Currier can speak…a…I don’t think he’s made any physical changes to the property. The property is the way it is today. He just moved desks in there and had his real estate office there for eight years. 

Mr. Maher: Well so then the garage was finished when he bought it? It’s either yes or no.

Mr. Coppola: Well, I mean, to jump in…

Mr. Stumer: Mr. Currier was there an office? That garage was that closed in when you bought it or did you guys close that in?  

Mr. Currier: A…a…I’m not…I’m not sure whether it was or it wasn’t because I wasn’t involved in it. Had a partner…had a partner that was involved in the Newburgh area a…Pete Lazier and I don’t know what, you know, I really don’t know whether…whether he had had that enclosed or not. I was under the impression that it was enclosed when we bought it.

Mr. Coppola: I believe it was because that’s the way its indicated on the plan, you wouldn’t put the parking spaces here if I had to get into the end of the garage so, I mean, that goes back to 1990 and I believe if you look in the Building Department records it has evidence of the square footage includes…includes the garage.

Mr. Manley: If we decided that we were going to grant the variance and the motion was made to indicate such it could all be conditioned on getting through the Planning Board level. If at any point the Planning Board…they couldn’t meet the requirements of the Planning then the variance would not move forward. Could we…? 

Mr. Donovan: Well that’s always a condition on any…on any variance that we issue. It’s always subject to…if the application needs to go back to the Planning Board for site plan approval our variance is always conditioned upon the issuance of site plan approval for the variances we issued at the ZBA. 

Mr. Manley: Which then means that if it drops at that level variances go on…somebody in six months want to do something different they’ve got to come back to us again. 

Mr. Donovan: I see what you’re saying Jim. I’m mixing apples and oranges because we certainly…we have a provision that the variance carries through a…and there’s no time frames that that approach or that come into plan but if in fact we issue a variance for these dimensions…I’ll take that back, it would carry through whether or not it got site plan approval because this is not a newly proposed structure its an existing building. 

Mr. Manley: Is there any way that we could codify a…a granting of a variance based on this particular project? 

Mr. Donovan: Do you mean his use as a doctor’s office?

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: The issue that you have there is that a…this is not a use variance application. The use…they will have to meet whatever use is allowed in that B zone a…and so we would be hard pressed to come up with a nexus between a condition, granting this variance and imposing a condition that it will only be used for a specific use when in fact there are other uses that allowed in the B zone. 

Mr. McKelvey: We have the review by the Orange County Planning and theirs is Local Determination. 

Mr. Hughes: Has the original 1990 variance expired at this point? 

Mr. Donovan: Well, yeah that’s why, I assume, one of the reasons why they are here. If you look at the 1990 variance it’s also unclear as to what variances were issued but I…

Mr. Hughes: Its unbelievable. And you say they’re not nailed with the change of use for that building even though it’s going from residential to commercial? 

Mr. Donovan: My understanding of the Bulk Tables is that that is permitted.  

Mr. Manley: Now back in 1990 the…the variances they were seeking obviously one was a use variance at that point in time which is one of the hardest variances to achieve. So I’m struggling with back then they approved it giving them a use variance but now a use variance is not needed because of the change of zone from IB to B, offices permitted in B, they are actually requesting less variances in 2011 than they needed in 1990. They might have needed six or seven variances not only did they need a use variance in 1990, they needed probably area variances as well. So they got a huge hurdle to overcome in 1990, which at that point the Board granted… 

Mr. Donovan: Issued, right. 

Mr. Manley: …and today they are seeking only three variances. 

Mr. Donovan: That’s correct. 

Mr. Manley: So…

Mr. Hughes: Counsel, could you indicate to the public what 185-19-B (2) has to say about all of this? That’s 185-19-B (2).

Mr. Donovan: Well hold on a second Ron.

Mr. Hughes: I’m not rushing you now take it easy. 

Mr. McKelvey: 185-19?

Mr. Hughes: 185-19-B (2) that a non-complying building that changes the use although its all pre-existing needs to obtain a use variance and that’s the thing that caught my eye to begin with and then when it went from seven down to three variances after reading the letter from the most recent Planning Board meeting it was very confusing how we’ve evolved to this from April 7th until now.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. so 185-19 is entitled Nonconforming Buildings and Uses. That actually has no applicability because what they are proposing is if I understand correctly the property is in a B zone and they are proposing a permitted use.

Mr. Hughes: This was a letter that came from Mr. Donnelly who cited those sections that’s why I wanted you to read it.  There…there’s something here that doesn’t add up through this whole application its very confusing. I would like more time for many reasons, the parking issue, the intrusion on the streets on both sides of the road, the possibility of taping into a sewer system, the confirmation that there is water on the site and several other things that just seem to be following a bad hand to play. That’s my opinion.

Mr. Donovan: Is this…this building been a…damaged?

Mr. Coppola: No, not at all. I mean it’s perfectly habitable right now as an office.

Mr. Donovan: Ron, I cannot say why he is referencing 185-19-B (2) which talks about restoration after damage. I don’t…I don’t know the answer to that.

Mr. Hughes: Was there water damage in the building or a roof problem or something?

Mr. Coppola: No, no. 

Mr. Hughes: Well I…I don’t know whether we have…maybe we have two or three applications rolled together here? It didn’t make any sense to me. In the same packet of papers from the same attorney and from the same Board I have three different opinions of 100 ft. wide, 150 ft. wide, 100 ft. deep, 150 ft. deep, its B, its IB, its 40,000, its 15,000 so I only consume and comprehend what I read and all through this there’s discrepancies left and right. I’m not comfortable with it at all. It looks like a pinball bouncing off the flippers and…and just…there’s references to papers all over the place but none of them are consistent with a common plan. I hope you can understand my confusion, if you’d like to read the packet?

Mr. Coppola: I’d be happy to explain anything to you right now, Animal. I really would…I really would. I…I think if…I think I accept the responsibility for what happened at the Planning Board by bringing the IB Bulk Table but we’ve…we’ve…

Mr. Hughes: Well I think part of it is their problem as well.

Mr. Coppola: …we’ve…we’ve corrected that in writing and the attorney has corrected that in writing and so has the Town, the Planning Board planner. They’ve all made those corrections in writing and those are all part of your application.

Mr. Hughes: Let’s start with the basics. Is there a possibility, Jerry, of taping into that system?

Mr. Canfield: The sewer system? 

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Canfield: I don’t believe exists over there.

Mr. Hughes: It runs right in front of Price Chopper where that manhole is there. 

Mr. Canfield: That’s further up. I can check with the Sewer Department but I don’t believe it’s even available there.

Mr. Hughes: I mean, that’s a big issue if you have Municipal sewer or not. If you don’t and you’re going to put eight office spaces in there and its medical building guess what’s going in the ground? I’d rather have it go into a treatment center than to go into the ground.

Mr. Canfield: The only question there is that its an existing system that’s been in operation for twenty years a…its been an office for twenty years, its been functioning for twenty a…the suggestion may be…

Mr. Hughes: With this amount of office space in it or…?  

Mr. Canfield: Yeah, that’s what’s there. A…a suggestion may be though if the Board is concern is the function ability of the septic is the maintenance a…program you may want to condition a…upon subject to a maintenance agreement on the septic system.

Mr. Hughes: Isn’t there a stream that runs behind those houses? Don’t you guys…isn’t there a stream between the…?

Ms. Mccullum: Yeah, there is an easement on the property, there’s a pipe that comes down from past Dr. Mallick’s, goes back at the…goes behind the property that I have, all the way down and it goes to Powelton Club and out to the river. Yes that’s there and has anybody taped into it for other reasons? I’ve been told yes. I mean, I…I don’t know. Yes is there septic over at formerly Martin’s? Yes. As a matter of fact, probably the last couple of years I did see someone there digging something up but I don’t know how they’re connected at this point, Ron, but there is one.    

Mr. Donovan: Ron, going back to Mike Donnelly’s, I’m about as cheap as they come but I would bet money that instead 185-19-B (2) he meant 185-19-C (2) which is entitled Change in Use and that says any change of use to a conforming use which this would be subject to site plan review by the Planning Board of a building which remains nonconforming as to the district regulations for bulk, which this building is, shall not be permitted without an area variance from the ZBA and site plan approval from the Planning Board.

Mr. Hughes: Well O.K. that makes some sense because the other thing didn’t.

Mr. Donovan: Right, it didn’t make any sense at all. 

Mr. Hughes: I…I went round and round on this application and I couldn’t figure out they were going at. I have nothing more at this time. 

Mr. McKelvey: Any more questions from the Board? 

Ms. Drake: The doctor’s office that’s proposing to purchase this is that the one behind you or beside?  

Mr. Stumer: (Inaudible)

Ms. Drake: On Winding?

Ms. Gennarelli: Scott.

Mr. Stumer: Yes, it’s the one behind, on Winding.

Ms. Drake: And did they…are they connected to sewer or do they have a septic system also?

Mr. Stumer: I believe septic.

Mr. Hughes: You do understand my concern about the medical waste that may accrue in a building like this on both sides of that stream? That…that stream runs all the time and it goes all the way down into the Hudson and it wiggles its way behind Mom’s, it goes underneath all those restaurants there, Burger King and the Alexis Diner…

Mr. Canfield: There should be no medical waste going in the sewer system or septic, that’s what you said medical waste.

Mr. Hughes: Well that’s one…    

Mr. Canfield: That’s illegal.

Mr. Hughes: …one of my concerns.

Ms. Eaton: Is this only going to be one tenant in this building, correct?

Mr. Stumer: That’s correct.

Ms. Eaton: There’s eight offices but one tenant?

Mr. Stumer: There’s currently eight offices a…I don’t think anyone here could answer whether the doctors can use four of them or all eight, you know.

Mr. Coppola: We gave a plan… 

Ms. Eaton: I just want to know if there is more than one tenant going in there. 

Mr. Stumer: No.

Mr. Donovan: But…but to be clear if we give a variance for the three things that are requested subject to any site plan approval conditions there could be multiple tenants in there.

Mr. Coppola: That does not effect your parking calculation just based on square footage. So if there’s one tenant or ten tenants parking is the same all throughout the Town.

Mr. Stumer: And we’re showing eight offices today because that’s how it is. That’s what it looks like today so…

Mr. Hughes: How many offices are in the other building that the guy operates out of?

Mr. Coppola: I have no knowledge of that building at all.

Mr. Stumer: A…I…I…I’ve been to the pediatrician a…but its kind of laid out where there’s a big reception area and I…there’s like four or five rooms. I don’t know exactly what those rooms entail. 

Mr. Hughes: So if they had ten doctors employed in this office these parking lots could be like a conveyor belt coming in and out of there.

Mr. Coppola: I don’t think there is any in…in the Town of Newburgh zoning, I don’t think it makes any difference if you’re a medical office or an architect in the terms of the parking calculation.

Mr. Hughes: I’m not arguing that point I’m talking about traffic flow and you’ve got  a possibility of two apparent entrances there and it’s a very busy place. I don’t know that you are going to have enough parking if those two on the side that are out in the street have to be eliminated.

Mr. Coppola: I said before I think can handle that at the Planning Board. I believe I can.

Mr. Hughes: The violations were to obtain a Permit to replace all 1992 alterations, variance to require from a 1-family to an office, variance to change over also requires Planning Board approval, obtain a Permit for conversion, obtain a Permit for in ground pool demo, obtain a Permit and it goes on and on, there’s fifteen items here and none of them have been done. And a condition is a difficult enough thing to put together without writing a book. There’s a lot of problems here.

Mr. Coppola: We’re…we’re not even able to address those issues until we get past this Board and past the Planning Board. I cannot even address the Building Code issues, which make up the bulk of that list. That would be the last thing I would do.

Mr. McKelvey: They are only here for three items Ron.

Mr. Hughes: Well I understand that. How it evolves to a denial of a Permit is always a magic sport and sometimes we get things that come in here that overlook the obvious and sometimes there’s stuff that are mislabeled or misdirected as we’ve observed tonight. I just don’t like it when there’s something going on there which could cause a problem in the neighborhood where there’s still existing wells and everybody in the area isn’t on it. And when I say isn’t on it, the wells and the septic, this could be a health problem. 

Ms. Drake: Jerry, is there Town water in Winding Lane up in that area behind there or are those all on wells?

Mr. Canfield: There’s Town water up there. 

Ms. Drake: So there shouldn’t water supply wells to private residents in the area?

Mr. Hughes: I think there is both in the area.

Mr. Canfield: There shouldn’t be but there may be.

Mr. Hughes: There’s some people that are still on wells in that area. 

Mr. Canfield: Right.

Ms. Drake: Oh, O.K. 

Mr. Hughes: Counsel, the parking spaces that project at least 40% out into the road, how can we even look at that?

Mr. Donovan: Well, it’s not before us so we can’t. 

Mr. Hughes: But I mean do we do this because we know its there?

Mr. Donovan: Well I think the suggestion was before, that we can highlight it to the Planning Board that we are concerned that that doesn’t comply with Code. 

Mr. McKelvey: Is there any more questions from the public? Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

No response.

Mr. McKelvey: What’s your choice?

Mr. Donovan: Well you even have a motion to close or a motion to continue.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: Well I’m not really satisfied with what I’ve heard. I don’t know how anybody could feel comfortable in good conscience with all of these up in the air factors to move ahead. I move we keep the Public Hearing open and we get some more input back from all of the Boards that are concerned including the Building Department and affidavits to the a…compulsion that if they are not hooked to water that they need to be and so on. I can think of a dozen items here that don’t fit. 

Mr. Donovan: And just to be clear that would be a motion to continue the Public Hearing until the June meeting. 

Mr. Hughes: I think we need more information and this will give the attorneys and the Planning Board and everybody else an opportunity to look at what they’ve written and correct it and in the up-to-date form. I realize that there’s have been some corrections already but there’s just too much going on here on a small property that whole thing isn’t even an acre, 15,000 ft that’s 100 x 150 if you round it out. 

Mr. Donovan: So if the Board’s inclined to do that someone needs to second that motion and you need four affirmative votes to carry it. 

Mr. Maher: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: No

                                  Mr. McKelvey: Yes

Mr. Donovan: So what that means is this Public Hearing is continued to the fourth Thursday in June.

Ms. Gennarelli: June 23rd.

Mr. McKelvey: June 23rd.

Mr. Donovan: June 23rd, no additional notices will mailed and a…but you’ll have an opportunity to speak and obviously you know that you have an opportunity to speak at that.

Mr. Canfield: Mr. Chairman, if I could request from the Board a…perhaps correspondence from Counsel what exactly the Board is looking for from the Building Department. What information? A…so we can respond appropriately.

Mr. Hughes: Has there been opportunities in the past Jerry, where other people have connected into that sewer?

Mr. Canfield: Say that again.

Mr. Hughes: Where other people have connected into that private sewer?

Mr. Canfield: Not to my knowledge but I’m not sure.

Mr. Hughes: I thought there was some off of Grimm Road that came to a pipe that were allowed to connect to this.

Mr. Canfield: I don’t know that for sure Ron, I’d have to research. But if you could just give me a list of those concerns so that I know what I am looking for.

Mr. Hughes: I’ll call in a list of addresses to you to of the ones that I know of. 

Mr. Donovan: Well if you’re looking at me then somebody better give me that list of concerns as well.

Mr. Hughes: I’m surprised that that so much bad stuff floated for twenty years. 

Mr. McKelvey: So we’ll hold it over until the next meeting in June.

Mr. Donovan: Right if someone, if Code Compliance wants a letter from me let’s a….I’m not sure that I have the list so.

Mr. Coppola: We…we want to be clear and bring the Board all the information that we need to bring so I would, I would appreciate that too, let’s clarify right now. 

Mr. Hughes: I don’t want to rush and try to compare and try to put something together and hold up the rest of the meeting, we’ll get back to you. 

Mr. Coppola: How will that work? 

Mr. Hughes: Our attorney will write a letter to you, to tell you what we are looking for. 

Mr. Donovan: Well if someone could just communicate their concerns to Betty and Betty can contact me and I’m happy to write the letter. I’m not sure that…I mean I heard a lot of conversation but I’m not sure that I can generate a list from that so if you could…if that’s O.K. Betty…and then you could forward that to me so I could…

Ms. Gennarelli: Sure. They can contact me.

Mr. Donovan: …so I can communicate something to the applicant.

Mr. Hughes: If all the colleagues are all right with that.

Ms. Gennarelli: Or they could read the minutes.

Mr. Coppola: O.K. Thank you.

PRESENT ARE:

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

            MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT:   GRACE CARDONE

ALSO PRESENT: 
DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

                                    GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE 

 (Time Noted – 8:05 PM)
ZBA MEETING – MAY 26, 2011             (Time Noted – 8:06 PM) 



LORRAINE BARNUM


9 LANCER DRIVE, NBGH







(56-1-6) R-2 ZONE  

Applicant is seeking an area variance 185 – 19 – C – 1 – reconstruction shall not increase the degree of non-conformity (front yard setback) to build a 2-story bi-level 1-family residence.  

Mr. McKelvey: The item on the agenda is Lorraine Barnum.               

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out thirty-one registered letters, twenty-two were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Ms. Eaton: Mr. Chairman, I am going to recuse myself on this application. 

Mr. McKelvey: State your name and what you are here for.

Mr. Meluso: Hi, my name is Anthony Meluso, I am an engineer. I am here for Ms. Lorraine Barnum. Her house at 9 Lancer Drive a…was a…taken by fire last winter and we’re in the process of replacing the home and we wanted to seek a variance because even the original home was built a little bit too close to the road. A…the setback to the front is 40-feet and I think the existing home is at 40…39-feet…38.7-feet and a…I brought a sketch so everything is pretty clear to everyone what we’re asking for and I also sent a letter to Ms. Cardone a…by e-mail last…yesterday.

Mr. Donovan: She left town when she got it.

Ms. Gennarelli: Last night.

Mr. Meluso: So did she a…distribute it amongst you.

Ms. Gennarelli: She is on vacation.

Mr. McKelvey: She’s on vacation.

Ms. Gennarelli: It came to the Zoning Board office and I made copies.

Mr. McKelvey: We all got it.

Ms. Gennarelli: Some of the Board Members just got the copy tonight.

Mr. Hughes: If you could sir, turn this around for the public. We have copies of that in our packed so they can be informed. 

Ms. Gennarelli: If you could just put it back where it was over there? That’s good. Thank you. 

Mr. Meluso: Ms. Barnum has lived in Town over forty years and she is the original owner of the house that was built by Schoonmaker homes back when you really didn’t have to be a…quite as thorough in your planning and a…I think the house was meant to be at a 45-ft. offset, they just missed it by eight or twelve inches and then they a…continued on building the house….

Ms. Gennarelli: Anthony, could you just get a little closer to the mic?

Mr. Meluso: You bet. Let me show you the existing house and then proposed home and then we’ll talk about the lot and its encumbrances and its advantages and disadvantages. What I intended to do is read this letter if no one had seen it but if you’ve seen it that’s fine.

Mr. McKelvey: We all have it.

Mr. Meluso: O.K., so I’ll just take you through it. This is the entire set of plans for the original home. It’s a 24 x 40 tracked house and some of the options are redlined and its not signed by an engineer. A…this house is here is basically 38.7-ft. off the road. It’s a very undefined and meandering road, Lancer Drive, it varies in width in certain points and a…the Code references that come up are 185-18-B (2) Reconstruction after damage and that the other one we addressed also because it’s a corner lot having two fronts I showed the front a…visibility requirement for the intersecting roads and that it has plenty of room. The house sits on top of a small hill; the current driveway is underneath and into the garage. Ms. Barnum is getting on in years and she wants not to have to walk up the steps so much to get access into the home. The existing property is 15,034 feet on a good day. I measured it this morning a...on autocadcher coming off the surveyors. There’s a drainage easement that comes down here and it makes…

Ms. Drake: Can you turn the board slightly so we can see it a little bit better? 

Mr. Meluso: Yes, I’ll just push it.

Ms. Gennarelli: Just push it all the way back where it had been. Thank you.

Mr. Meluso: Again, there’s a drainage easement and it makes the site very wet. It’s…it’s at a point in the neighborhood where everything drains towards it. She has a block foundation and it’s always wet in the basement. So what we want to do a…at this point in time, with limited funds is to fill in the basement halfway and keep her out of the…the mold and the mildew and the water and reconstruct basically the same footprint 28 x 40, instead of 24 x 40 and the only difference is the existing house has large overhangs which put the roofline closer to the street. It also has a large front set of steps and I’ll show you these on the new plans. I just want to pass it around. The steps are here so those steps will be removed... 

Ms. Gennarelli: Could you take that microphone with you when you come up?

Mr. Meluso: O.K. So the intent is to remove that set of steps which is about 4-feet. It doesn’t figure into the calculation of the front offset of the home for some reason the way they measured it. We’re going to take those steps out which are 4-feet wide and put in a 3-feet wide a…foyer and that shows up right here. So the entrance will be very nearly the same place so for the entire length of the home which is 40-feet only 12-feet will be more non-conforming than it already is. But what it does is it provides a brand new home up to Code, it has all the light, ventilation, efficiency of energy requirements built in, insulation, it’s a…an improvement in the neighborhood. It’s not a substantive variance because the house is setback far enough to where its not interfering with the line of sight, it’s not a detraction and it’s also screened very well with…a…from the…the neighboring homes because of its setback with the mature landscaping. So Ms. Barnum is working with limited funds from an insurance policy and she has so much money it needs a little pigeon hole, so much money to move out and rent another home, so much money to design a new house and so much money to put it back and we’re bumping headroom on all of those columns, if you’ve ever dealt with an insurance company. So the plans have been prepared by Charlie Brown a…he did a nice job and he did it as a favor to me, he didn’t really charge a lot a…one of the things that we do is we save the old foundation. If we were to try to make the lot totally conforming as a result of the reconstruction that would mean destroying the entire foundation and starting over and then that would put us out of the ballpark because its not covered. So that would be an added expense at a point in Lorraine’s life where, you know, she’s looking at retirement. 

Mr. Hughes: Is your building envelope considering the deduction of the easements which what are they 15-feet? 

Mr. Meluso: They’re 10 actually. 

Mr. Hughes: They’re 10?

Mr. Meluso: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: And you have an easement on both corners of the apex there…

Mr. Meluso: I just showed that but that’s a new requirement but I put it in in case you needed to consider it, with the new Code, I put this in. Its 20-feet, 20-foot radius and then 20-feet and then you have to connect the two points just to show that you have it and we’ve done that.

Mr. Hughes: And is this also in the next property an easement as well? 

Mr. Meluso: Yeah, it runs a…no; it runs up here, down this way and ends. But the way the other lots drain, they pretty much drain down that rock wall and the tree line and there’s actually a…a catch basin.

Mr. Hughes: We’ve all been out to…

Mr. Meluso: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: …the site that’s why all…

Mr. Meluso: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: …those trees are there. There’s water.

Mr. Meluso: Well I thought if I…if I showed what we for and…and now this is a...its not a off the photo where its not directly on top of it but it does it show the one point of that’s effected and it is to scale. This is the existing foundation its 24-feet, we’re trying to get to 28 with…the roof won’t protrude the 2 ½-feet that it does now, it’ll be a 1-foot overhang, the steps will be gone but with the 12-foot from this corner to the front door it will stick out three more feet. 

Mr. Hughes: So you’re…you’re butting up a 2-foot cantilever to a 4-foot cantilever?

Mr. Meluso: Pretty much.

Mr. Hughes: And you’re offsetting penalty doesn’t add up if you’re keeping those…a foot in and you’re going…

Mr. Meluso: But you don’t measure the roof but I’m just showing how the…

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Meluso: …the plan view, even the steps weren’t measured on the offset when…

Mr. Hughes: So now you’re filling the basement?

Mr. Meluso: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: With…with what?

Mr. Meluso: A…selected material and clay just to cap it.

Mr. Hughes: Like a bank run or gravel?

Mr. Meluso: It’ll be bank run and then just normal fill.

Mr. Hughes: And then how do you intend to get rid of the mold problem that you spoke of by doing that?

Mr. Meluso: Well they’ll…they’ll disinfect it first.    

Mr. Hughes: Oh, so you’re going to shoot it and then fill it?

Mr. Meluso: Just mildewcide it and then bury it.

Mr. Hughes: Are those concrete block or are they cinder blocks?

Mr. Meluso: I think they’re cinder blocks.  

Mr. Hughes: That’s a problem.

Mr. Meluso: I know. Well they’re pouring new foundation in some places but that…the 4-feet that remains will be above grade.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah. 

Mr. Meluso: So those blocks will be above grade.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. You do know the problem about the cinder blocks? You’re an engineer, right? 

Mr. Meluso: Yeah, they’re all dry cast and back then no one filled the cells.

Mr. Hughes: Are there footing drains on the property or…?

Mr. Meluso: I can’t tell you that.

Mr. Hughes: You don’t know? Jerry, do you know if there’s footing drains in this installation?

Mr. Canfield: I’m sorry. What was your question again? 

Mr. Hughes: They’re talking about filling in the basement after just inspecting it for the mold situation. Are there footing drains in these buildings or was that not considered in that time?

Mr. Canfield: There will have to be.

Mr. Hughes: So you know that there are?

Mr. Canfield: I don’t know that they are there but they will have to be.

Mr. Hughes: So if they’re not in there they are going to be?

Mr. Canfield: They will be put in.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: Yeah.


Mr. Hughes: Thank you for answering those questions. What’s your total lot? 15,000?

Mr. Meluso: And 34-feet, yeah.

Mr. McKelvey: On the steps, how far out did the come?

Mr. Meluso: Right now they come out 4-feet and you can just count them and see.

Mr. McKelvey: And that would…that would account for a setback?

Mr. Donovan: Well, that’s the other question that I had because the sheet we got from Code Compliance is that, you know, we have a non-conforming front yard which essentially is going to stay the same but we’re going from a single-story house to a two-story house, two-story bi-level from a ranch so we’re increasing the degree of non-conformity that’s as I understand is the application before the Board.

Mr. Meluso: I think with Joe a…Joe Mattina is correct in saying it and then having it referred to you. A…what Joe is saying is that on his little sheet that he keeps with a…that graph paper on it, its got a little check list next to it, he’s saying it doesn’t conform with 185-18-C (1), I think it is?   

Mr. Donovan: 19-C (1).

Mr. Meluso: 19-C (1), so he can’t decrease the non-conformity with the front off set by himself so it already is non-conforming and we’re asking you to maintain the non-conformity and give us a…a front setback that is 34.7-feet. 

Mr. Donovan: Right, O.K.

Mr. Meluso: But on balance if you were to do a weighted average…

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Meluso: …you…you wouldn’t be any worse off than you are today. Any questions?

Mr. Hughes: You do understand that because it’s adding up that it’s furthering the non-conformity?

Mr. Meluso: It’s the same amount of square footage but I understand that it does.  I don’t think that it was Joe’s intention I think that it was with respect to the front setback that’s why he sent us here because its…its pretty much the same living space. It’s almost the same floor plan.

Mr. Hughes: Water and sewer?

Mr. Meluso: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Both?

Mr. Meluso: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: So there’s no problem with…?

Mr. Meluso: No.

Mr. Manley: Now there was an Order To Remedy issued in the property back on May the 11th for maintaining an accessory apartment in the basement without a Permit or a C.O. that…it said that it had to be rectified or answered by 5/25 has that been since rectified?

Mr. Meluso: A…(to audience member)…hold on, don’t speak, let me get this. 

Audience Member: No.

Mr. Meluso: No, I have this. Yes, what I…what I wrote in the letter was, the original home was taken this past winter in the interim Ms. Barnum received a citation which is remedied by both the fire and the proposed reconstruction. O.K. so…

Mr. Manley: And that’s not going to be an issue with the new? There’s not going to be anything put in the new…?

Mr. Meluso: No, no. They won’t have a basement it’s a bi-level now so you won’t have any sleeping quarters downstairs.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Meluso: And again…

Ms. Drake: Will there be an apartment or anything or is it… 

Mr. Meluso: No.

Ms. Drake: …just going to be a apartment or anything or… 

Mr. Meluso: No.

Ms. Drake: …is it just going to be a one-single family house? 

Mr. Meluso: No. It’s a single-family house.

Mr. Hughes: And you had mentioned something to alleviate the steps what are you going to have an entrance in the back, at ground level or…?   

Mr. Meluso: No what the point I was trying to make is that here there is a set of steps and they protrude out 4-feet from the home but they are not calculated in where you calculate the front offset from at least on…on paper…

Mr. Hughes: I’m talking about…

Mr. Meluso: …we’re taking those out and putting in a 3-foot foyer.

Mr. Hughes: I’m talking about elevations you’re saying that she’s trying to eliminate steps. 

Mr. Meluso: Yeah she’s one step up now she’s eight inches.  

Mr. Hughes: I see.

Mr. Meluso: Yeah and then the parking goes to the side.

Mr. Hughes: So there’ll be no garage in the building?

Mr. Meluso: Yes, the garage would be on the…on the end so her driveway will come in here.

Mr. Maher: So I guess…

Mr. Hughes: Are you filling the basement or are you not filling the basement?

Mr. Meluso: Yes we’re filling the basement. May I? 

(Inaudible) 

Mr. Meluso: Mr. Hughes, the garage goes here and the driveway moves over so she’s at…

Mr. Hughes: Is the garage outside the footprint of the building or…?

Mr. Meluso: No, its part of the building. It’s part of the 28 x 40 ft. length.

Mr. Hughes: So you’re not filling the entire basement? Do you have a garage…?

Mr. Meluso: The garage section will have a slab.

Mr. Maher: I think I can clarify. So you currently have an 8-foot basement?

Mr. Meluso: Correct.

Mr. Maher: And you’re filling it 4-foot? 

Mr. Meluso: Correct.

Mr. Maher: To make it ground level with the garage?

Mr. Meluso: Correct.

Mr. Maher: And the new driveway, correct? So you’re putting four foot of fill in, a slab, it becomes now a…basically a half filled basement so you have the four foot exposed in the bi-level.

Mr. Hughes: So when you get out of the car you have four feet from the slab or…I’m not following this.

Mr. Maher: You have 4-foot concrete wall, 4-foot framing and then you’re second floor above that.

Mr. Hughes: So the bottom will have a fully framed out for the car to go in and the rest of it will be built above that?

Mr. Donovan: No.

Mr. Meluso: Yeah, no.

Mr. Hughes: Well then I…

Mr. Meluso: What we do is we’re taking an 8-foot block wall and we’re only going to use the top 4-feet of it. We’ll fill from minus 4-feet down to minus 8-feet then we’ll frame out from 4-feet, positive 4-feet to make the first floor.

Mr. Hughes: I see. I’m with you now. I got it Jerry. Yeah.

Mr. Maher: So the one question I had, on the plot plan you supplied in essence those concrete steps that are there will not be there when you’re complete, correct? 

Mr. Meluso: Correct. I know it’s not usual to ask for something to become more conforming but we’ve been pretty straightforward here. We’re trying to do this because it does present a hardship and it’s not a substantive request given the neighborhood. There’s also another Code provision that says a…its 185-18-C (2) and it tells you that if you look at the houses on either side of it and they are also non-conforming then you can be too or just not more than they are and if you drive around this neighborhood you’ll see lots of nonconformities and you’ll see houses that are not parallel to the road so there average setback might be 40-feet but one corner might be closer than 40. So again, thank you for your indulgence and for your favorable review.  

Mr. Manley: Just one other question, to make sure that the right amount of feet are being provided I’m still a little bit confused with the front setback. You said there’s going to be no front steps or porch?

Mr. Meluso: The…the point I was trying to make was if you look at the construction drawings there’s a 4-foot concrete porch there now…

Mr. Manley: Correct and that’s going away.

Mr. Meluso: That’s going away but its going to be replace but its going to be replaced by a 3-foot by 12-foot long section of building and I think the way they calculated the front offset in the past, they didn’t include the steps they just measured it from the foundation. So that’s why we’re here, to point out that nonconformance.

Ms. Drake: So you’re actually decreasing the conformance? You’re going less than what was there before because if the steps weren’t included you are extending the building closer to the front road then, to the road?

Mr. Meluso: If you now measure the steps as part of the building then we’ll be less conforming…a…we’ll be more conforming. If in the past you didn’t include the steps in the measurements then we’ll be less conforming.

Ms. Drake: But those steps…you’ll be more conforming by 1-foot because you are out 4-foot now and you’re only coming out 3-foot?

Mr. Meluso: Correct.

Ms. Drake: But they’re only how wide?

Mr. Meluso: 4-feet wide.

Ms. Drake: But now you’re going be 12-foot wide?

Mr. Meluso: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: Plus you’re extending your cantilever, which is increasing the footprint if you will.

Mr. Meluso: Right.  

Mr. Manley: So when you exit the front door will you be exiting on steps or no steps?

Mr. Meluso: One step.

Mr. Manley: Just one step?

Mr. Meluso: Yeah.  

Mr. Manley: O.K. And you made sure that that was in your calculation, right?

Mr. Meluso: The step, no.

Mr. Mayer: Jim, actually the step is actually closer to the actual building than the a…than it was before. They don’t protrude the face of the building; the building is actually the closest to the road…not the step. 

Mr. Manley: Just so that you don’t have when you the building is complete and they do the final measurements that there just isn’t a problem with now all of a sudden you’re off by two feet and you have to come back here for a two-foot variance. Do you understand?

Mr. Meluso: Yeah, I know. Lorraine asked me well how come the house is in the wrong place. I said, well this is 1961, they probably went to lunch bought the Building Inspector a hero sandwich and went on to the next house. They were building twenty at a time back then.   

Mr. Maher: Jerry, if I’m not mistaken you don’t consider the front step, concrete step part of the setback, correct?

Mr. Canfield: 185-18-C (1) yard requirements there is an exception. Chimneys, open trellises, steps and terraces not higher than 1-foot from ground level are exempt from front yard requirements. A…as far as the cantilevering as long as its not greater than 10% of the front yard setback that is also exempted and that comes out of that same section.

Mr. Hughes: So he’s knocking it out a foot on each side and its hanging over a foot now there’ll be two foot cantilevers. That adds up.

Mr. Canfield: Right.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Ms. Drake: Jerry are you satisfied that this Order To Remedy, the violation has been resolved?

Mr. Canfield: Well I think its an accurate depiction that the fire has resolved the…the violation no longer exists, the structure no longer exists.

Ms. Drake: But the violation was dated this month and the fire occurred this past winter, correct?

Mr. Canfield: Yeah I believe it was in January or February of this year.

Ms. Drake: Right, so why was the violation order be issued if the violation is not there then that’s…

Mr. Canfield: I…I don’t understand that. Why…why Mr. Dubetsky did that but the fact remains that yeah, the structure is no longer there.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: The violation no longer exists.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Manley: That’s…that’s why I asked the question because you know, this is May and it appeared that the fire was in the winter so I didn’t understand why a violation was issued if indeed the structure isn’t there.

Mr. Canfield: Yeah, I don’t know. I don’t know that. A…the applicant has…the applicant’s representative… representative have stated that there will be a single family dwelling a suggestion may be to condition your variance, should you choose grant it, on that.

Ms. Drake: Thank you, Jerry.

Mr. McKelvey: The only thing, maybe he was thinking they were going to put the apartment back in. 

Mr. Canfield: Perhaps, I don’t know. 

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah, I…

Mr. Canfield: But that’s why the suggestion was to maybe condition the a…the variance. 

Mr. McKelvey: Do we have any questions from the public?   

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Recused

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Mr. McKelvey: Yes

Mr. McKelvey: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 8:30 PM)

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MAY 26, 2011    (Resumption for decision: 9:52 PM) 



LORRAINE BARNUM


9 LANCER DRIVE, NBGH







(56-1-6) R-2 ZONE  

Applicant is seeking an area variance 185 – 19 – C – 1 – reconstruction shall not increase the degree of non-conformity (front yard setback) to build a 2-story bi-level 1-family residence.  

Mr. McKelvey: The next one is Lorraine Barnum, an area variance to reconstruct; reconstruction shall not increase the degree of non-conformity (front yard setback) to build a 2-story bi-level 1-family residence. 

Mr. Donovan: Which is also a Type II Action.

Mr. McKelvey: Type II Action under SEQRA. 

Mr. Hughes: Now there was a spread on the footprint on that building because it existed with a one-foot cantilever over the foundation and now he’s looking for two and I don’t know if that needs to be noted in this approval or not but rather than have him come back here again do we make a note of that at this point and approve it that way?

Mr. Donovan: Sure. 

Mr. Manley: Just the other…the other thing that probably the motion should include is that it needs to be a single-family residence just make sure that’s…that was something that Brenda brought up.

Mr. Donovan: Correct. Yes.

Ms. Drake: So I’ll make a motion with those two conditions to approve.

Mr. McKelvey: Do we have a second?

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Recused

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Mr. McKelvey: Yes

PRESENT ARE:

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

            MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT:   GRACE CARDONE

ALSO PRESENT: 
DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

                                    GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE 

      







 (Time Noted – 9:54 PM)
ZBA MEETING – MAY 26, 2011             (Time Noted – 8:31 PM) 



IRENE LIGHTBODY


120 OLD SOUTH PLANK RD, NBGH




(64-2-11.1) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for a rear yard setback to build a rear yard deck on the residence.  

Mr. McKelvey: The next application is Irene Lightbody.               

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out nineteen registered letters, eighteen were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. McKelvey: State your name and what you’re here for.

Mr. Haynes: Good evening my name is Dylan Haynes and speaking on behalf of Ms. Irene Lightbody who is sitting to my right. This evening we’re here seeking a variance so that we can replace a deck that was currently at home. The deck a…that was previously there a…it wasn’t placed in the ground, there was no footing and it was sitting on the ground and it was uneven and its also a…the only way to exit from the rear of the home so as a result we’re looking to replace that structure, put in a deck that’s 10 x 10 and that would also serve as the exit from the rear of the home where actually the kitchen is located. From what we see there is no environmental issues that will be caused by the deck being placed there, in fact, as far as safety is concerned a…the new deck will be much safer than what was previously there as well. As well as falling a…within the Code because it would also have the appropriate footings. At the rear of the home there is right now an empty a…parking lot for a structure that’s presently not being used so there would be no obstruction to other families and what have you. And we’ve also discussed it with a number of the neighbors and they have no issues with the deck being placed in the back. The issue really is is that from the end of the deck to the property line a…we don’t have the appropriate setback in the footage so that’s why we’re seeking the variance.      

Mr. McKelvey: Any questions from the Board?  

Ms Drake: The proposed deck will be down near…on the first floor or will it be on the second floor with steps going all the way down?

Mr. Haynes: There will be steps going down. The way how the house is a…designed the front entrance is lower than the rear entrance. You have to go up steps a…towards the back to get to the back door so when you walk out the back door you will have to step down a couple of steps a…in order to get to the ground level.

Ms. Drake: But will the exit from the house be on the first floor or the second floor. 

Mr. Haynes: It will be depending on how you look at it its either the first floor or the second floor because exiting from the kitchen is the first floor. If you a…exit from the front of the house you have to go down steps so it may look like the second floor.

Mr. Maher: So the exit where the door in the back of the building is where the deck is going, correct?

Mr. Haynes: That is correct. Also for quality of…of life based on the way that home is situated a…the home is set back much further from the…from the property line so to provide some sort of privacy and quality of life a…so that we can sit outside and relax and eat. It would provide much more privacy than trying to put something at the front of the home, which aesthetically wouldn’t look appropriate as well. 

Mr. McKelvey: The property in back slopes up too, right?   

Mr. Haynes: Yes that is correct. That is correct.

Mr. McKelvey: Any questions from the public? The report from the County is Local Determination. 

Mr. Maher: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Mr. McKelvey: Yes

Mr. Haynes: Thank you ladies and gentlemen. 

Ms. Gennarelli: They just voted to close the Public Hearing its not over yet, sorry.

(Time Noted – 8:36 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MAY 26, 2011    (Resumption for decision: 9:54 PM) 



IRENE LIGHTBODY


120 OLD SOUTH PLANK RD, NBGH




(64-2-11.1) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for a rear yard setback to build a rear yard deck on the residence.  

Mr. McKelvey: The next one is Irene Lightbody an area variance for a rear yard setback to build a rear yard deck on the residence. Any discussion?

Ms. Drake: I don’t feel it will impact any neighbors or any views or anything with the location of it.

Mr. Maher: And obviously something needs to be on the back of the residence to…for a egress and no matter what you put there its going to fall in the a…within the area setback so they will need a variance no matter what. 

Mr. Hughes: I’ll move it for approval.

Ms. Drake: (Inaudible)

Mr. McKelvey: Roll call.

Ms. Gennarelli: Who was the second, I’m sorry? Brenda?

Mr. McKelvey: Brenda. 

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Thank you.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Mr. McKelvey: Yes

Ms. Drake: And that’s also a Type II.

Mr. McKelvey: That was also Type II Action under SEQRA.

PRESENT ARE:

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

            MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT:   GRACE CARDONE

ALSO PRESENT: 
DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

                                    GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE 

 (Time Noted – 9:55 PM)
ZBA MEETING – MAY 26, 2011             (Time Noted – 8:37 PM) 



LORI MANZO LEEMANS

ROUTE 9W (AREA OPP NO.HILL & McCALL)






(20-2-46.22) B ZONE:

Applicant is seeking a use variance to build a single-family residence in a B Zone.  

(Both Applications were heard combined together and the following the minutes from Lori Manzo Leemans and Linda Manzo combined presentation for the May 26th, 2011 Public Hearing before the Zoning Board of Appeals.) 

Mr. McKelvey: The next on the agenda is Linda Manzo.

Ms. Gennarelli: Leemans is first John.

Mr. McKelvey: I’m sorry, yeah. Lori Manzo Leemans. 

Mr. Reis: Good evening ladies and gentlemen. How…would it be O.K. or advisable from the Board to talk about the Leemans and the Manzo use variance together since they are contiguous properties and they’re…?

Mr. Donovan: It’s at the discretion of the Board; if you want to do that you are certainly able to.

Mr. Hughes: I’m guessing by what you’re saying that your persistence is to go after the use variance?

Mr. Reis: Yes sir Mr. Hughes that’s correct. I assume…however you choose I’ll a….

Mr. McKelvey: Do you want to do them together or do you want to do them separate?

Ms. Drake: I don’t have a problem doing them…hearing the presentation together but I think we should vote on them separate.

Mr. Donovan: Oh, there is no question you should vote separate.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah, we’ll vote separate. Yes.

Mr. Reis: O.K. a…

Mr. Hughes:  If I may? I’m really confused about something.

Mr. Reis: Go ahead sir.

Mr. Hughes: And Counsel please help us all. I read all of the dissertations and narratives that came through on this project and there’s quite a bit of paperwork but nowhere am I confident that I’ve read the reciprocity maintenance agreements and ingress and egress accesses to both of these properties and out to 9W as well. 

Mr. Reis: Your question is ingress and egress?

Mr. Hughes: With a right of way, a deeded right of way over both properties to a Municipal road or a State highway.

Mr. Reis: All right, let me a…let me answer that specifically. The Leeman’s lot, two and three quarter acres, the lot itself includes the driveway and that driveway, the owner of that driveway, Leemans, has given a right of way, it happens to be her mother but to the contiguous lot the Manzo lot has a right of way to use that property that property being the driveway. 

Mr. Hughes: All right so…so that we can get through this easily can we safely say that the house down on the road is number one parcel and the next one up is number two and the one all the way up the top number three just so we can all follow along with this?

Mr. Reis: That suits me if that’s the way the Board would like to proceed.

Mr. Hughes: Here’s what I don’t understand or maybe I misread it, the property is a difficult one to develop because of its altitude and as it goes up from the blacktop driveway once you pass that house in order to give ingress and egress to the number two and number three property I didn’t see anything that was written out that describes the fifty foot right of way over any parts of those properties, reciprocal to maintenance agreements, snow plowing and/or access. Now if your pursuit of the use Permit or the use variance is to provide two residential spots there what’s to prevent parcel number one from stopping them from going in there? 

Mr. Reis: Well parcel number one doesn’t own the property. They have the right to use it to get to their garage.

Mr. Hughes: Who owns the property?

Mr. Reis: Parcel number three.

Mr. Hughes: The one all the way up in the back?

Mr. Reis: To the left, correct. But if I may…if I may just expand on that, Mr. Hughes? 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, maybe you could put the backdrop up.

Mr. Reis: A…whatever the use is…whatever the use is if the Board should not grant for…I can’t imagine why you wouldn’t but if you…if you went in that direction and we left it the way it is the access would be the same for all those lots, that doesn’t change.

Mr. Hughes: And then maybe is there a deeded right of way description for that ingress and egress to all of those lots.

Mr. Reis: A…a…there must be. All right. I do not…I haven’t presented it to you obviously. There must be something.

Mr. Hughes: Has anyone seen such a thing? Or am I…?

Mr. Donovan: I‘ll try to make sure I get the lots in order but with the package is a deed to section 20, lot 2, block 46.2, I haven’t got…this is in the Leeman’s file from Michael L. Manzo and Linda J. Manzo to Lori Manzo Leemans. In that deed there is the following recitation, this lot or parcel of land is subject to a continued right of ingress, egress and regress, I guess you have to drive your car backwards to regress, over the existing paved driveway on lot number 3, in favor of lots 1 and 2 as shown on the aforesaid map which is referenced as the Manzo Subdivision Map to New York State Route 9W a public highway.

Mr. Hughes: So we had the numbers the other way around?

Mr. Donovan: I think so. Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Does it say how wide it is? Does it say where it…?

Mr. Donovan: There is no metes and bounds description, no.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so…

Mr. Donovan: Presumably it was always a difficult thing to do but presumably it is shown on the Manzo Subdivision Map from 1991.

Mr. Hughes: But is that legal or is it diagrammatic? 

Mr. Donovan: Is it legal? It’s legal.

Mr. Hughes: Is it binding?

Mr. Donovan: Is it better to have a metes and bounds description? You can do it that way or you could append a…a picture plot plan which is better but this is legal.

Mr. Reis: The survey shows a fifty-foot wide driveway. I assume all have that. 

Mr. Donovan: Is it there, Jerry? Because I don’t have it.

Mr. Canfield: The metes and bounds are here on the deed.

Mr. Hughes: Can you point us to a fifty-foot right of way description somewhere? With metes and bounds? I…I see this part with of it where it talks about snow and anything over four inches of snow so it leads me to believe there is some kind of a maintenance agreement.

Mr. Donovan: And if I continue to read further there is in fact a maintenance agreement. There is one.

Mr. Hughes: I spotted that but I didn’t see any description of about where that road is.

Mr. Donovan: Nope, don’t see it there either although Jerry says he has it.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Manley: Your testimony last month was the applicant had received this property either as a gift or through a…could you just, if I remember, was it a gift?

Mr. Reis: I don’t know how that transpired Mr. Manley.

Mr. Manley: O.K. Do we know how the applicant came in possession of the property? Did they purchase the property? 

Mr. Reis: A…Mr.….a…Mrs. Manzo the mother has and owns this property here. All right? Here’s 9W. O.K.? Here’s the 50-foot driveway. There is a garage over here. This would be lot one that Mr. Hughes referenced there. Lot one has the right of way to go to his driveway, I’m sorry, to his garage. The driveway continues to this lot, which I believe is in your package, which is Mrs. Manzo. Mrs. Leemans is Mrs. Manzo’s daughter. O.K.? How she came upon ownership I…I believe that I’m really…I don’t know for sure, I believe it was given to her as a gift. 

Mr. Donovan: If I can? According to the…a…testimony last month, Mrs. Leemans said it was gifted, the property was given to me back in 1989 from my parents.

Mr. Reis: Thank you for clarifying that.

Mr. Manley: So the real…the real question then in this whole variance for the use variance is going to be a reasonable return for the, you know, for the property. That’s, you know, the real issue is based on the other uses that are allowed and I was just reading some of the ones you had noted here in your letter a…theaters, restaurants, senior citizen housing, affordable house which is also what the County indicated that affordable housing may be a possible use for that zone. Would that not provide a reasonable return if that property was sold for affordable housing let’s say or workplace housing.

Mr. Reis: To answer that question, yes it would but the reality is that no one in the last five years has come up with a offer at all to use it for that purpose or any other B…B zone purpose so there is absolutely, regardless that she got it as a gift or paid a dollar or ten thousand dollars, she hasn’t had the opportunity to get a return on the property. A…the Manzo property again, you’ve given me permission to talk about both, they’re right next door to each other, contiguous a…same issue, the topography, same access a…this is a…four hundred feet from 9W, four hundred feet to the property so for any other business use its really a…has not been conducive.

Mr. Manley: All right then I guess my question to you then would be what do you feel a reasonable return on the property would be? 

Mr. Reis: In dollars and cents?

Mr. Manley: Yes.

Mr. Reis: Forty thousand, fifty thousand, sixty thousand. If you’re looking at it from a zero investment, fifty grand that’s a windfall obviously but a…I don’t know if that…that should make a determination on whether she should receive this variance or not. A…it…

Mr. Manley: Well the whole use variance is based around…

Mr. Reis: Around that.

Mr. Manley: …reasonable return so…

Mr. Reis: Well she hasn’t had a return she hasn’t had an offer. All right? I am the third broker that’s been involved with this a…a…two properties. O.K.? Over a period of…of over five years we’ve had a few offers for residential use but to my letter…that’s why we’re here now.

Mr. Manley: Thank you. 

Mr. Reis: Thank you. 

Ms. Drake: Do you feel with the slope of the property and if they were to build and the size of the property I was trying to figure how many acres it was, is there sufficient room for the septic and parking and a building to construct any other of those uses on this parcel?

Mr. Reis: If…if…if we had a need for it it would be a…I think more of a challenge than for a single-family dwelling district.

Ms. Drake: O.K. what I was trying to figure out was is it site constraint or site restricted to be able to do those other…

Mr. Reis: I would say both. 

Ms. Drake: …uses.

Mr. Reis: To answer your question, I would say both. There’s a tremendous amount of a…a…because of the topography for the property you have a probably, I not I don’t claim to be an engineer but I would say at least a 7-8 degree grade going up away from 9W going to the west. 

Mr. Hughes: How many of these properties contiguous to this proposal belong or are held by the Manzo family in all, same person, multiple people, all of the people that are brothers or sisters or whatever? I see the Manzo subdivision has 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 parcels it appears and together the aggregate of all of those lots is well over six acres. One of them is a substandard lot, which has an existing house on it that appears to have been abandoned, and the one south of this appears to have been abandoned as well and both are not in good repair. The detriment to the one lot if its only fifty-seven feet wide and two hundred feet back, the parent parcel, if you will, the house that exists on 9W is in the form of a horseshoe and it wraps around that fifty foot sliver and butts up next to right of way that you’ve pointed us out to and to another 2.8 acre parcel number 46.22. Is that in the possession of the Manzo family as well?

Mr. Reis: The only counting two lots that the Manzo family which is including the Leemans that family are the two lots that are in question…

Mr. Hughes: And the…

Mr. Reis: …to my knowledge.

Mr. Hughes: …so then could you answer me, Mr. Reis, does this property back here enjoy a right of way over that same property?

Mr. Reis: This piece?

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Reis: That’s the property…that’s the subject property, 46.22 is the subject property, 46.1 (48.1) is the other, is Manzo.

Mr. Hughes: So these are the only two properties that have a deeded right of way and a maintenance agreement over that.

Mr. Reis: 46.1 (48.1) has a right of way on this driveway. 

Mr. Hughes: So all three of them do?

Mr. Reis: Correct. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so…

Mr. Reis: That’s…that was one, two and three in your original statement.

Ms. Gennarelli: 48.1?

Mr. Reis: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: 48.1 Mr. Reis is telling me is the 1.5 acres…

Mr. Reis: That’s Manzo.

Mr. Hughes: And 46.22 is 2.8 acres?

Mr. Reis: That’s Leeman’s.

Mr. Hughes: And then 46.1 (46.21) is the parent house down on the bottom on 9W.  

Mr. Reis: That was Manzo that was sold about a year ago. 

Mr. Hughes: But they still have a right of way over that…?

Mr. Reis: They have a right of way on this driveway to get to their garage.

Mr. Hughes: And then we have these other two parcels that do as well.

Mr. Reis: The subject, right.

Mr. Hughes: Don’t we have another hook in here Counsel with three houses on a common road? That hasn’t been brought up prior to this even though they are not the same family when you have three residences on a common road you have to get an approval from the Town Board and you have to make maintenance agreements…

Mr. Reis: That’s not the Town road this is a driveway.

Mr. Hughes: I’m not suggesting that it was a Town Road.

Mr. Reis: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: You have to go to the Town Board to get an approval for three houses on common drive. 

Mr. Maher: Jerry, if I might on 46.1 (46.21) which is the original Manzo, do they have access on 9W separate from the driveway to the right, to the north.

Mr. Canfield: I don’t remember. I don’t think so Mike. I think that it is the driveway.

Mr. Hughes: The driveway is shared by all three.

Mr. Canfield: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: And in this case, I don’t know why its been overlooked up to this point but a…we can’t do anything with that until you get an approval from the Town Board. Again back to the original positioning of this project you have nothing but residential surrounding this thing right up to the north edge of parcel 53 and 57, which are both, commercial installations and the backs of both of these properties are in the residential district. It’s a legislative issue. Have the Town Board adopt it into the Carter residences and be done with it. If not, you’re going to end up in lots of trouble here with these reciprocal road agreements and snow plowing and maintenance and a dozen other things. 

Mr. Manley: Well the other issue to though Ron is that the…the Master Plan, this a change of use to residential would not be consistent with the Town’s Master Plan. 

Mr. Hughes: Nor the County’s. This…this thing is growing instead of diminishing in problems and I don’t want to have you or your client paint yourself into a corner but you do understand that I don’t think we can even move any further on this because of the three homes on the common drive. Counsel?

Mr. Donovan: I’m…I’m not familiar with that requirement. That’s a specific Town of Newburgh requirement? I’m looking at you Jerry, if you know. 

Mr. Hughes: You have to go to the Town Board to get relief for three houses on a common drive.

Mr. Manley: I believe Mr. Hughes is correct.  

Mr. Canfield: I think you’re right, correct. I can’t cite…I can’t cite a section.

Mr. Donovan: And that’s not in the Zoning Ordinance? It’s some other Town reg’s?

Mr. Canfield: I think it’s in the subdivision of land regulations. 

Mr. Hughes: It is. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K. I’m not familiar with it.

Mr. Canfield: I can research it but I’m not prepared to cite anything for you right now. 

Mr. Hughes: I’m pretty cheap too, I’d bet a few bucks on that. 

Mr. Reis: I’ll make a comment.

Mr. Hughes: We’ve been through this before. Go ahead.

Mr. Reis: This was an approved subdivision.

Mr. Hughes: By whom?

Mr. Reis: By the Town. O.K.?

Mr. Hughes: In what year, do you know?

Mr. Reis: No.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. 

Mr. Reis: A…

Mr. Hughes: Do you have an engineer’s name that did it or…?

Mr. Reis: I’ll have to investigate that, Mr. Hughes. A…but its an approved subdivision, you’ve got three lots that are on this private road a…you’re question about that lot one…

Mr. Hughes: 46.1?

Mr. Reis: 46.1 if it has access from the a…from 9W a…

Mr. Hughes: We were told no that the access…

Mr. Reis: Right.

Mr. Hughes: …came over that driveway.

Mr. Reis: Yeah. Well it was a question. I believe it might be but I can’t swear to it I’m just not sure but I believe there might be. But assuming that this is a…a…

Mr. Hughes: This says that this was ’93 subdivision. 

Mr. Reis: O.K. well…

Mr. Hughes: Which doesn’t make sense because if they gave her the property in ’89 and this has been generated since then how did that happen?

Mr. Reis: Are you asking me that question?

Mr. Hughes: I…I…I’m think out loud, I don’t know where to steer you on this thing. I thought I had given the Board the best advice about an easier way to do this but the further we get into this the more complications there are. If 46.1 has no other way of access into there you have to live with that ingress and egress agreement and the maintenance agreement that goes with it and in order to do that you have to get a special dispensation from the Town Board to allow three homes on a common drive.

Mr. Reis: O.K. well again just looking at the whole picture and trying to be logical about it, I’m not disputing what you’re saying. O.K.? I…I…good point however, if it was a…any of the uses for a business would have that same issue who is using the driveway and so on and so forth, all the points you just made. The…

Mr. Hughes: But you’re trying to remove this from the industrial use and make it a residential use.

Mr. Reis: Which would be a less impact from the Town, less impact from that particular environment, that neighborhood and less traffic than any other use. A single family home, typically two cars, any other use that is permitted would be amplified, I mean, would be a…tremendous amount of more traffic so that…that if I may say that argument or that…that issue its less of an issue with a residential use than it is with the current use.

Mr. Maher: Hey Jerry, if I’m not mistaken if in fact the…the a subdivision was done in ’93 that same requirement for two lots max on a drive was not in place, correct?  

Mr. Canfield: I believe so a…do we have anyone, this is a question, does anyone have before them the original Manzo subdivision.

Mr. Hughes: I didn’t see the original not in anything that I read.

Mr. Canfield: The reason that I ask that question is because I think that original layout and covenants or notes that were placed on that approved subdivision may help clarify some of your confusion whether or not a private road will even exist. I can retrieve that map from my files if you’d like but I think that may clarify some of your questions. 

Mr. Hughes: Well this is just the assessor’s copy of the tax map and I don’t know if that

’93 is the year that it was done or its another indicator.

Mr. Canfield: What confuses me Ron is…

Mr. Hughes: It seems like it was much longer ago than that than ’93.

Mr. Canfield: Yeah, what looking at 46.22 looks like it appears to be, it was created as somewhat of a flag lot.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Canfield: You asked the question before 46.1 is the old Manzo residence with the horse in the front. According to this assessor’s map, the driveway should access 46.1 onto 9W and this portion of the flag here is what creates ingress and egress to 46.22 and 48.1.

Mr. Hughes: It’s just an offset to get there.

Mr. Canfield: That’s what I’m thinking but I think the original subdivision map should clarify that for you.

Mr. Maher: Well how…how does that effect 46.21 when it becomes land locked it appears?

Ms. Drake: Well that’s what I’m thinking 46.1…

Mr. Hughes: That’s a horseshoe.

Ms. Drake: Right but 46.1 has got an arrow to the other side of the fifty-foot wide lot. So I think 46.1 not really where 46.1 is really written. 

Mr. Canfield: That’s why you need to see the original subdivision.

Ms. Drake: So this 46.2….21 is the one coming off with the garage and wrapping around.

Mr. Hughes: This is an abandoned house and this is an abandoned house but see it doesn’t show anyway this to go out to here?

Ms. Drake: But when we’re referring to 46.1 that’s not the right parcel that we’re talking about. 

(Inaudible)

Mr. Donovan: To confuse matters further, if you look at the private road maintenance agreement shows lot 46.1, 46.2 and 46, not 46.22 and not 48.1. 

Mr. Canfield: See another thing Dave too is that this verbiage on this deed references 46.2 which I believe was the parent parcel which is now become 46.21 and .22, so again the original subdivision may help clarify that. 

Mr. Donovan: Let’s hope so. The private road maintenance agreement is dated January 1994 so you would well…

Mr. Hughes: So that makes sense that it was divided in ’93 and written in ’94?

Mr. Donovan: The tax lot numbers don’t seem to match up. 

Mr. Maher: Dated 3/17/91.

Mr. Donovan: And that…

Mr. Maher: From the Schedule A.

Mr. Hughes: And she was gifted in ’89 you’re saying?

Mr. Donovan: Then it says filed in June of ’93.

Mr. Maher: Right.

Mr. Reis: Just a note, folks, 46.1 and 46.21 a…that was recently sold and I happened to be the broker that handled that and that is one lot.

Ms. Drake: No I don’t think so. I think the 46.1 has an arrow pointing to a different lot. 

Mr. Canfield: I concur. I think Brenda is correct. 

Mr. Hughes: What’s it pointing to Brenda?

Mr. Maher: The lot between 47 and 43. 

Mr. Donovan: Ah ha.

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes, it is. Yes it is Brenda.

Mr. Donovan: Old Eagle Eye, I didn’t catch that with my grocery store glasses.

Mr. Hughes: So what Mr. Reis pointed out…Betty…46.2 is the horseshoe and 46.1 is that little parcel in the front that is two parcels down from…

Ms. Gennarelli: But we’re talking about 48.1 and 46.22.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, nope, we’re down on 9W now…

Ms. Gennarelli: But the parcels that are in question…

Mr. Hughes: What Mr. Reis has pointed out, the horseshoe that was the original house is 46.21 and it’s a total of 1.8 acres…

(Ms. Gennarelli approached) 

Mr. Canfield: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: …this one right here, this horseshoe.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. you’re pointing to this. 

Mr. Hughes: This one right here.

Ms. Gennarelli: Right. 

Mr. Hughes: So even at that if this lot and these two lots all have a commonality over this we need another approval besides what we’ve already discussed.

Mr. Maher: I don’t think so.

Mr. Hughes: Why?

Mr. Maher: Because prior the date of the subdivision it was not required for a maximum two lots, two homes on a single road. That’s only newly made I imagine in the last 10 years I believe. 

Mr. Hughes: Oh no, its much longer than that, much longer than that. I know those houses on Cloud Street had the same thing going on and that was in ’89.

Mr. Maher: I believe prior was four on a single; it is now it’s two.

Mr. Hughes: On a private road.

Mr. Maher: No, four was the max on a private drive and then it was changed, I believe, about ten years ago to two.

Mr. Manley: That…that’s correct. It used to be…it used to be, I believe, four. You’re right. 

Mr. Hughes: What I’m saying is three on a driveway and then it goes to the private road not a driveway. This is a driveway. 

Mr. Maher: But at the time of the approval it was allowed. 

Mr. Hughes: I don’t know that to be true. I don’t know. We’ll have to do some research on that. 

Mr. Reis: Ladies and gentlemen, regardless of the a…a…who is using the driveway…I’m just trying to get through some logic here and I’m…I’m trying to be fair and balanced…

Mr. Hughes: It doesn’t always happen in zoning.

Mr. Reis: I understand. All around this property is residential except for the contiguous property to the north a...to the east, south and west we have a single-family dwellings is going to be less traffic with a single-family dwelling proposedly…proposedly if…if this variance is granted…a…there will be less of an impact on the neighborhood, a return on the investment by changing the use it will make it saleable because it just has not been saleable a…for the last five years for the zoning use that it is required. So regardless of who uses it or to answer Mr. Hughes’ a…point a…right now there’s three that have the ability to use it legally a… I fault myself for not being able to answer the one point about this lot in here if they have access off of 9W. I believe they do where that horse was. Where that horse was I think there’s a driveway that a…that goes up the a…a…to the front porch area of that house, if I’m not mistaken.

(Inaudible)

Mr. Gennarelli: Ron, Ron pull that in.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I don’t think that goes on to the 9W on the culvert. I think it goes out to the paved driveway but we can check on that.

Mr. Reis: O.K. did you ask me to wait, Betty?

Mr. Hughes: No, she was given me hell for not using the microphone.

Ms. Gennarelli: Right. O.K.

Mr. Reis: A…my recollection is coming back a little bit, obviously we have to make sure of what I’m going to say is accurate but I believe that the a…front house where the horse used to be which on the tax map is 46.1 (46.21) that there is an existing driveway off of 9W that accesses that property. 

Mr. Hughes: That 46.1…

Ms. Drake: You would mean…

Mr. Hughes: …is this one over here.

Ms. Drake: …46.21.

Mr. Hughes: This is the horseshoe parcel where the horse used to be.

Mr. Reis: The horse used to be right where this ‘1’ is, right in front this property. 

Mr. Hughes: Right but this horseshoe parcel…

Mr. Reis: Yeah. 

Mr. Hughes: …is that whole parcel where the horse used to be.

Mr. Reis: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: This 46.1 is this parcel over here. You see the arrow? 

Mr. Reis: Yeah, I didn’t…I didn’t realize that.

Mr. Hughes: We didn’t either until Brenda pointed out. 

Mr. Reis: O.K. you sure…you’re that that’s that?

Mr. Hughes: Well you can see the arrow…

Mr. Reis: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: And you can see the little…the little spot here.

Mr. Reis: It’s all part of that.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah and then this number here is this big horseshoe and it’s going to contains 1.8 acres in that horseshoe. You said you just sold that property recently, was it 1.8 acres? 

Mr. Reis: I believe so. I’m not sure. 

Mr. Hughes: So that’s the best…


Mr. Reis: But I know that there is a driveway between a…on this border here. O.K.?  

Which access that house.

Ms. Drake: Jerry would the Town have the file for the original subdivision that was done?

Mr. Hughes: Or the County.

Mr. Canfield: They have that.

Ms. Drake: That would be something we would be able to get and look for a…a meeting next month?

Mr. Canfield: Yes, we have 

Ms. Drake: To look at between now and next month that subdivision map.

Mr. Canfield: …the a…yes. 

Mr. Hughes: I’m…I’m still…I’m…Counsel? Do we even have the right to rule on this in a use…in a use situation? I…I don’t see where it qualifies.

Mr. Donovan: Then you vote no. But yet…I mean, you have an application before you, we talked about it last month, the ability of the applicant to seek zone change or the use variance. They’ve elected the remedy to come here and seek the use variance. The standards are pretty if you think they’ve met them you vote yes. If you think they haven’t you vote no. But one of your choices isn’t we don’t like it go away.

Mr. Hughes: No, it’s not that, I mean, to me I can see what he is trying to go for. From where I’m sitting and this is just my perspective of it why wouldn’t you take all of those residences there not just this particular applicant and add it to the residential district and never have to have any of them come back here again? You’re making more work and more trouble…

Mr. Reis: We’re not…we’re not trying to set a precedent here. We’re asking for…

Mr. Hughes: Well we’re trying to avoid one. 

Mr. Reis: And I...I…

Mr. Hughes: To give you a use variance is setting a precedent that has never even been thought of around here before. But to add it to an existing residential district is your path of least resistance and you seem to be adverse to it. I don’t understand it. But again, this is just my perspective of it maybe I’m missing the big picture.

Mr. Reis: O.K. A…this…

Mr. Hughes: You’ve served on one of these Boards before?

Mr. Reis: Yes, yes I have. 

Mr. Hughes: Have you ever had an applicant come to you and ask you to do what you’re asking?

Mr. Reis: Similar, similar but we always made of a…you’re asking me a question.

Mr. Hughes: I wont’ ask you whether it was approved I’ll leave it hanging.

Mr. Reis: It was.

Mr. Hughes: It was?

Mr. Reis: I get that out quick but not that should sway you one way or the other but I…I…I can’t see that I mean…you’re bringing up what we did…

Mr. Hughes: Two things, Jerry, wouldn’t that be the easiest way to add it to the residential district for your purposes too? Without turning the whole cart upside down we’ll have every other property on 9W in here looking for a use variance and Counsel, do we dare even think of it?

Mr. Canfield: I have no answer for that question.

Mr. Hughes: Can we agree again twice in one night or…?

Mr. Donovan: I mean, if you don’t think he’s met his burden of proof then you vote no. 

Mr. Hughes: Could…could you reiterate the burden of proof so that everyone knows what we’re looking at here, the public especially?

Mr. Donovan: I don’t have it off the top of my head but I do have it in front of me so bear with me a second. 

Mr. Hughes: Sure.

Mr. Canfield: I do know Ron though there’s not that many other vacant parcels around there.

Mr. Hughes: Right.

Mr. Canfield: To answer your question. 

Mr. Hughes: Especially residential.

Mr. Canfield: Well I’m talking about the likelihood of another applicant coming back before you asking for this very same variance, that’s what I’m saying. I don’t believe that there’s that many other vacant parcels in that area.

Mr. Hughes: You only have to go four parcel and the same thing starts again leap frog every other lot right on up through the old firehouse. 


Mr. Donovan: Let me just recite like I did last meeting what 267 Subdivision B (2) of the New York State Town Law says ‘No such use variance shall be granted by a Board of Appeals without a showing by the applicant that applicable zoning regulations and restrictions have caused unnecessary hardship. In order to prove such unnecessary hardship the applicant shall demonstrate to the Board of Appeals that for each and every permitted use under the zoning regulations for the particular district where the property is located: 1) The applicant cannot realize a reasonable return provided that lack of return is substantial as demonstrated by competent financial evidence. 2) That the alleged hardship related to the property in question is unique and does not apply to a substantial portion of the district or neighborhood. 3) That the requested use variance if granted will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood. And, 4) that the alleged hardship has not been self-created.    

Mr. Reis: I believe that we’ve a…we’ve a…concluded in the letter that we’ve met all of those standards to a…to accommodate what you need to make a…a…a…decision. A…a return on investment there’s been absolute no interest, I’m repeating myself a...to a…a to sell it as a business use. We have had offers and a…you know, for a residential use that we have not been able to go forward with obviously. A… we’re talking about a total of a…a one and a half acres on one lot and two and three quarter acres which includes driveway which is three quarters of an acre that’s a…I guessing about a hundred acres a…it’s a very unique situation. We have a driveway that comes in that accesses these two driveways to answer Mr. Hughes’ a…a…a point and I…and I…I understand it and a…a…I respect that point of view but this request is a set on its own merit and not a...what…obviously it hasn’t happened before the likelihood of it happening again in the immediate area of these a…two lots is highly unlikely. I don’t think there is another lot, looking at the tax map, there’s no other lot that has a driveway that accessing two properties a…to the rear that are four hundred feet off the road. A…to utilize it as a a business it just does not lend itself to that. Why it wasn’t included with the residential properties to the rear I…I have no idea. I have no control over that but for you folks to be able to make a determination and say we can use it as a residential dwelling use I can’t understand why that would not be a a logical reasonable use of the property.  The…the impact to the neighbors none, highly, highly less than other use that it is zoned for currently.

Ms. Drake: It doesn’t really matter whether we’d like it to be a residential or don’t like it…

Mr. Reis: I understand.

Ms. Drake: …it doesn’t get into that get into that. It gets into whether there is a use that’s permitted would work and that’s one reason why I asked the question do you feel that any of those other uses with the site constraints would fit and maybe it would be worthwhile to have a couple of layouts done with some of those uses showing whether you were to do a senior housing or something you would need to excise septic system, number of parking spaces, too steep, show a couple of layouts showing that those designs would not work and would also be here for other variances might help your situation if you were to pursue this.

Ms. Manley: And I would agree with what Mrs. Drake indicated the one hang-up that I see here that I keep going back to is the reasonable return for the applicant to demonstrate that and I don’t see anything and it specifically speaks of competent financial evidence. There’s no financial evidence, that I see, that shows that and when I say evidence, an appraisal of the property, a…having a professional come in and state what the return would be would it be sold for a bank property or, you know, that’s really what I need to see to make sure that that property won’t get a reasonable return. Because if you’re saying forty to sixty thousand dollars, if the property is sold for forty thousand dollars for a commercial use that’s a reasonable return, in my estimation. 

Mr. Reis: I…may I respond? I agree with what you’re saying one hundred percent, Mr. Manley, however it’s been on the market for five years with three different brokers, zero interest for the current zoning...zero, none, nada which equates to no return on your investment. A…I stand here before you, I…I’m a broker for a…thirty-two years and have been marketing these properties for three years well almost four and again prior to me there were two other brokers. Point being is no interest at all and we’ve had interest for residential use so I can’t...I can’t deliver to you a…we’ve had offers for ten thousand or thirty or forty thousand because it just did not happen. And, if it happened we would have sold it I would not be standing before you. We’ve had several offers for an interest for residential p.s. that’s why we’re standing and…and…before you looking for some relief.

Mr. Manley: But just because you have an offer for that doesn’t necessitate granting of a variance. There has to be certain conditions that have to be met in order to achieve that threshold.

Mr. Reis: A…I believe…  

Mr. Manley: And I…I just believe we are at that point yet where you meet that threshold and what Mr. Hughes suggested it may be easier to get the zoning changed through the Town because they are the legislative body that can…can make that change where they don’t necessarily have to meet that threshold that we have to meet in order to grant the variance. 

Mr. McKelvey: If…if you could get in to that residential district you wouldn’t be here. 

Mr. Hughes: You wouldn’t need any variances whatsoever.

Mr. McKelvey: You wouldn’t need any variances.

Mr. Hughes: They would take and make a lot line change on their map and stamp it residential and you’d have two customers.

Ms. Drake: The other option being both lots are vacant lots a rate of…a plan could show the two lots combined as one lot for meeting the needs of any of those allowed uses so…

Mr. Maher: Do you currently have an offer on the table contingent upon the approval here?

Mr. Reis: No. They a…withdrew their offers not being able to tell that buyer that a…we should have a…a variance within two months or three months. I didn’t have the confidence to tell him and I didn’t want him to expect that I could produce it and they didn’t want to take the time and the energy and the money so to answer you’re question, no.  

Mr. Maher: Was there a conversation that if in fact you’d did prevail you would contact them to offer the property again?

Mr. Reis: Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: You’ve all seen that…what the County said to them?

Mr. Hughes: Could you read that into the record please?

Mr. McKelvey: If you want it read. It says, Possible Alternatives: Although new single-family residences are not permitted uses under the B zone, affordable housing is listed as use number 13 in Column D of Schedule 7 of the Town of Newburgh Table of Use and Bulk Requirements, uses subject to site plan review by the Planning Board. The applicant may wish to consider providing affordable housing on the project site, which would not require a use variance. 

Mr. Hughes: There are other options as well if a client decided to put in a duplex you need to have a hundred thousand square feet and you have that with the acre and a half that you there if you deduct the road. Can you deduct the roads, Jerry? And then you only have two parcels on one driveway and you don’t need to go get that special thing from the Town Board. Now Mr. Maher has a different opinion he thinks that the law was changed and that you’re coddled or cradled in that protection zone. I don’t believe its so. I think the law was changed a long time ago.

Mr. Reis: Well, in due respect, the owner’s property have been taking on this since a…the 1990’s as two separate lots, to force them to a…combine the lots to accommodate just doesn’t seem a…American to me. I don’t know.

Mr. Hughes: I’m looking at the bottom line. I don’t know if it’s an American thing but I’m looking at finance.

Mr. Reis: I understand.

Mr. Hughes: You do understand the five (four) points that the Counsel suggested and I think you missed two or three of them. You didn’t substantially indicate the money part of it and its not that unique a situation there’s a dozen other buildings between that property and what’s that road that goes up by in front of the firehouse, Jerry? Is that Lattintown? Across from Mary Jane’s between Lattintown and this particular property there’s a dozen of the those same things going on, leapfrog every other lot right on up to the corner so its not like it’s a unique thing in that area or a unique thing in the Town. Part of the things that you have to prove are those five (four) points is that its unique and its site specific to this lot only and you don’t have that. So you’ve missed three of the five (four) points from where I sit but again that’s just my opinion.

Mr. Reis: I…I have to address what a…you’re saying. If you don’t have an interest at all over an extended period of time that takes care, in my opinion, takes of the a…financial hardship. Each a var…

Mr. Hughes: Hardship is a whole different thing let’s not go there that’s…

Mr. Reis: Say that again.

Mr. Hughes: Financial hardship is a whole different subject matter; we’re talking about reasonable return not a hardship.  

Mr. Reis: Oh, I’m sorry, thank you, I agree with you. If you don’t have any interest, zero interest a…there’s no rate of return. Now you can get a…a certified appraiser in here to say its worth x amount of dollars if somebody was interested in buying it but no ones been interested in buying it.    

Mr. Hughes: Do you attribute that to the flat market or is there other factors?

Mr. Reis: Well five years, we hit its peak and we were coming down five years ago. O.K.? We are in a very flat market as most of you probably are aware of but again there’s no interest now and five years back a…that takes care of, I believe, that takes of that portion of what we’re supposed to bring to the Board. What is the other…?

Mr. Hughes: You mean the reasonable return part of it?

Mr. Reis: The reasonable return, yes.

Mr. Hughes: How do you equate that? I don’t understand.

Mr. Reis: If you have no interest and you can’t sell it for any amount of money… All right? There’s no interest, nobody made an offer for ten thousand.

Mr. Hughes: Now…now you’re really throwing things into the formula here that don’t add up. Let’s state with a continuity here, you said that you had somebody that wanted to give you forty grand for both of the parcels?

Mr. Reis: No, I didn’t say that at all.

Mr. Hughes: Oh.

Mr. Reis: Mr. Manley asked me what a…what do I think would be a reasonable return on these. And I said, forty, fifty, sixty. O.K.? But we haven’t had any offers, twenty, thirty, none so that in my feeling, my thought, my interpretation of that is there’s if there’s no interest, there’s no rate of return there isn’t any.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. freeze that thought right there.

Mr. Reis: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: You’ve got your prospect of selling these lots, if you were to take that lot and add it to the district behind it and put the sign up for forty, fifty or sixty like you said wouldn’t it sell without having to go through all of these contortions here?

Mr. Reis: As a residential lot?

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I mean, you’re not trying to sell it as commercial.

Mr. Reis: I am ninety-nine and nine tenths confident, yes that we would sell it.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. So then why won’t you have it added to the residential zone behind it instead of persisting on this? 

Mr. Reis: There is some reason I’m trying to recall all our conversations. I met with Canfield and the attorneys and the engineers.

Mr. Hughes: Well I do recall, you’ve back and forth…

Mr. Reis: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: …between all the buildings.

Mr. Reis: And…and somehow this…this a…

Mr. Hughes: Are they suggesting that this is the way to do it?

Mr. Reis: I…I…I…somehow this is why I’m here. I don’t know how it came about.

Mr. Hughes: You might want to ask them if they consider it to be a legislative issue or a political issue because other than that I can’t see any reason for it. 

Mr. Reis: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: We’re trying to steer you in the right direction. I really…

Mr. Reis: Oh, I really appreciate that.

Mr. Hughes: I don’t want to paint you in a corner.

Mr. Reis: Thank you. 

Mr. Hughes: And I don’t want any of our other Boards to paint you in corner to me there is an easier way to do this thing.

Mr. Reis: Right, well if you…if you can’t see your way doing it then we will pursue the other.

Mr. Hughes: Well its not just me we’ve got seven people here. 

Mr. McKelvey: You spent a lot of time going to this procedure when you didn’t have to.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah. It’s a legislative issue, Mike. This thing is not anything magic to do its not a miracle. It’s changing the line by a legislative process. Counsel what would it take to run through the Board two or three months?

Mr. Donovan: I don’t represent the Town Board I’m not going to…I don’t know.

Mr. Hughes: I mean, if you want to heat on them like they are putting the heat on you to stay here tell them to take a breath of fresh air and get the pen out. And you can tell them who told you, Hughes.

Mr. Canfield: Just one thing that Mr. Reis had stated and I’d like to clarify the record. You are not here on my advice. I only brought before this Board if they would hear the application without building plans. So I know this is recorded and I’d like it on the record that you are not here on my advice. O.K.? 

Mr. Hughes: And we’re not saying…

Mr. Canfield: I just wanted to clarify that.

Mr. Hughes: And we’re not saying that any particular Board or person is pushing you but to me it seems a little bit confusing why you don’t take the easy path around us.

Mr. Reis: A…no, I didn’t mean to a…say or…or imply a…that Mr. Canfield suggested I do this. O.K.? A…

Mr. Hughes: Counsel, would we dare recommend he contact Mark Taylor and have him talk it out with him and see what he has to say or… No?

Mr. Donovan: Let’s see, we can either vote to approve or vote to deny.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. well then let it rip. 

Mr. Reis: Can I get…can I get five positive votes please?

Mr. Maher: I…I think what Mrs. Drake was trying to explain earlier obviously in the real estate business appraisals come out for commercial and residential properties, correct? So if you had a an appraisal done for this piece of property as a commercial piece of property and it came back at a certain dollar value and then you had one done as a residential which I believe is what you are trying to get to and it came back at a certain value obviously that may help your case in some manner. It may hurt it also but I think that would help the Board realize that the factor is an actual return on the investment for commercial versus residential.

Ms. Drake: Well what I was actually trying to get at is would the properties actually stick a use of that type and if the…if the way its configured, the slope, the soils and the parking would not even allow you to put those uses on the property then obviously if you sold it for that for a use as permitted and they can’t build on it then there’s no return value on there because it cannot be built on for those uses. That’s what I was trying to get at. 

Mr. Hughes: See your geographic constraints that has you blocked into a corner. If the properties that we’re talking about were at the same level as the commercial properties next door that thing would probably be gobbled up in a heartbeat but because you have that elevation going up and back for somebody to do something in the zone that allows that particular use they would have to dig that down to where it was level with 9W. You’ve got quite a problem there. I have nothing else. Thank you for answering all those questions. I…I wish I could do…

Mr. Reis: Thank you for your time and energy. 

Ms. Drake: Well I guess before we can decide whether we’re going to vote, would you like us to vote tonight or would you like to present more information, us holding the Public Hearing open for you to present more information at next month’s meeting. What would you like?

Mr. Reis: If you could give…well let me ask you a question if I may? A…I heard what you said Mr. Maher and I appreciate that comment, Mr. Manley about the return on the…on the investment and I…I…I…continue to go back to a the same response about zero interest. A…I do appraisals, I’m not a Certified Appraiser but I do appraisals for many a…many issues and I come up with values. There’s a highest and best use and its determined for this…these particular two lots because of a lack of interest for commercial or business use and a fairly good response in spite of the market conditions that there is a fairly good response for residential use. Other than that what does the Board need for the applicant for you to make a positive determination? Can you tell me specifically?

Mr. Manley: Well I don’t think that’s a question that you see…I mean, you’re the individual that has to provide the documentation to us and I…I think its unfair to say, you know, what could you provide that would result in a positive response from the Board. I think that you…

Mr. Reis: Well…

Mr. Manley: …would need to submit the documentation, credible, you know, financial documentation that makes your case, whatever that you feel that is...

Mr. Reis: O.K. Other than the financial part of the Towns a…the alleged hardship and unique a…wait a minute, the financial part of it. O.K.? Are you satisfied with the fact that there’s no interest, zero interest, are you as a Board satisfied with that being met?

Mr. Maher: Well before I answer that let me ask you a question? You market a piece of property?

Mr. Reis: I’m sorry. 

Mr. Maher: You market a piece of property for sale, correct?

Mr. Reis: Yes.

Mr. Maher: What’s to say that a sign wasn’t placed on 9W advertising it and that’s all the extent that was done? Is that possible that that could happen? Unlikely but possible, correct? So he should put a sign out front, never advertised paper, MLS, whatever the case would be…it would generate a little interest, correct? Obviously from just putting a sign there.  

Mr. Reis: O.K.

Mr. Maher: So if in fact, we have no proof that anything further was done or any other than the letter that you stated that you had stated there was no interesting it. How far did you actually go? Did you put a sign out there? Was it listed in MLS? Your predecessors that listed it before, how far did they go? What other opportunities are there out there? Like Mrs. Drake said, as far as an engineer said this doesn’t work in a purchase in a commercial piece of property the value is x as a residential I feel its y. That type of documentation or evidence you can present that we can look at and feel comfortable with rather than saying there’s no interest in it.

Mr. Reis: O.K. 

Mr. Hughes: It’s not just a matter of P& L, if you’ll follow this…?

Mr. Reis: A matter of what?   

Mr. Hughes: Of profit and loss, P & L its not a spreadsheet item of reasonable return. Part of the elements that need to be satisfied for a use variance is that you have to prove to this Board that there isn’t anyone of those allowable uses that you could match to that property other than this. And I don’t know that you can do that reasonably. I…I don’t know what to tell Mr. Manley. Maybe this is the phrase, you have to give us all the excuses that you’ve covered your work and if there is nothing there in all of those uses that you could put on that same property. That’s difficult to do its almost impossible.

Mr. Donovan: No, I’m not interested in elaborating. I just want to be clear that, you know, certain Board Members have said we…we want certain…we’d be interested in seeing other additional information. I don’t want the inference to be drawn though that upon submission of that information it will be a favorable vote. You know, because it depends, it depends on what’s in the information; it depends on what individual Board Members think when they receive the information and they review the information.

Mr. Reis: I understand.

Mr. Hughes: Could I suggest that…?

Mr. Manley: That was my concern when the applicant’s representative said what can I get to you that perhaps would make…

Mr. Donovan: Right. 

Mr. Manley: …give you a positive response and just because you submit something doesn’t necessarily mean it’s going to give you a positive response.

Mr. Reis: That was not a fair comment to make to you folks. Thank you. I understand that. O.K. I guess it can’t hurt to request that you keep it open and if we should change our minds and go in the other direction that you had suggested last month, Mr. Hughes, I can always do that.

Ms. Drake: You can withdraw the application.

Mr. Reis: Right. Thank you.

Ms Drake: I’ll make a motion to hold the Public Hearing open...

Mr. Donovan: Again so that would be until June.

Ms. Gennarelli: June 23rd.

Ms. Drake: …to June 23rd.

Mr. McKelvey: June 23rd is it?

Ms. Drake: Yes.

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: Now that doesn’t prevent the applicant from doing his homework and finding out a less severe way to obtain his goal and I’ll leave it at that. You need to convince those guys, it’s their responsibility as a legislative issue and redraw where the residential district is in that area of the Town. 

Mr. Hughes: I’ll second that, holding the Public Hearing open and wish you luck in convincing them to wake up.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. This is on the Leeman’s.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Mr. McKelvey: Yes

 (Time Noted – 9:35 PM)
Mr. Donovan: And they will need to vote on the Manzo one.

Mr. Hughes: And the same thing on the second part.

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion on the Manzo lot to hold the Public Hearing open to June 23rd.

Mr. Hughes: I’ll second that.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Mr. McKelvey: Yes

Mr. Reis: Thank you for your time. I appreciate it.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for your patience.

Mr. Reis: Thank you. 
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(20-2-48.1) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking a use variance to build a single-family residence in a B Zone.   

(Both Applications were heard combined together and the following the minutes from Lori Manzo Leemans and Linda Manzo combined presentation for the May 26th, 2011 Public Hearing before the Zoning Board of Appeals.) 

Mr. McKelvey: The next on the agenda is Linda Manzo.

Ms. Gennarelli: Leemans is first John.

Mr. McKelvey: I’m sorry, yeah. Lori Manzo Leemans. 

Mr. Reis: Good evening ladies and gentlemen. How…would it be O.K. or advisable from the Board to talk about the Leemans and the Manzo use variance together since they are contiguous properties and they’re…?

Mr. Donovan: It’s at the discretion of the Board; if you want to do that you are certainly able to.

Mr. Hughes: I’m guessing by what you’re saying that your persistence is to go after the use variance?

Mr. Reis: Yes sir Mr. Hughes that’s correct. I assume…however you choose I’ll a….

Mr. McKelvey: Do you want to do them together or do you want to do them separate?

Ms. Drake: I don’t have a problem doing them…hearing the presentation together but I think we should vote on them separate.

Mr. Donovan: Oh, there is no question you should vote separate.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah, we’ll vote separate. Yes.

Mr. Reis: O.K. a…

Mr. Hughes:  If I may? I’m really confused about something.

Mr. Reis: Go ahead sir.

Mr. Hughes: And Counsel please help us all. I read all of the dissertations and narratives that came through on this project and there’s quite a bit of paperwork but nowhere am I confident that I’ve read the reciprocity maintenance agreements and ingress and egress accesses to both of these properties and out to 9W as well. 

Mr. Reis: Your question is ingress and egress?

Mr. Hughes: With a right of way, a deeded right of way over both properties to a Municipal road or a State highway.

Mr. Reis: All right, let me a…let me answer that specifically. The Leeman’s lot, two and three quarter acres, the lot itself includes the driveway and that driveway, the owner of that driveway, Leemans, has given a right of way, it happens to be her mother but to the contiguous lot the Manzo lot has a right of way to use that property that property being the driveway. 

Mr. Hughes: All right so…so that we can get through this easily can we safely say that the house down on the road is number one parcel and the next one up is number two and the one all the way up the top number three just so we can all follow along with this?

Mr. Reis: That suits me if that’s the way the Board would like to proceed.

Mr. Hughes: Here’s what I don’t understand or maybe I misread it, the property is a difficult one to develop because of its altitude and as it goes up from the blacktop driveway once you pass that house in order to give ingress and egress to the number two and number three property I didn’t see anything that was written out that describes the fifty foot right of way over any parts of those properties, reciprocal to maintenance agreements, snow plowing and/or access. Now if your pursuit of the use Permit or the use variance is to provide two residential spots there what’s to prevent parcel number one from stopping them from going in there? 

Mr. Reis: Well parcel number one doesn’t own the property. They have the right to use it to get to their garage.

Mr. Hughes: Who owns the property?

Mr. Reis: Parcel number three.

Mr. Hughes: The one all the way up in the back?

Mr. Reis: To the left, correct. But if I may…if I may just expand on that, Mr. Hughes? 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, maybe you could put the backdrop up.

Mr. Reis: A…whatever the use is…whatever the use is if the Board should not grant for…I can’t imagine why you wouldn’t but if you…if you went in that direction and we left it the way it is the access would be the same for all those lots, that doesn’t change.

Mr. Hughes: And then maybe is there a deeded right of way description for that ingress and egress to all of those lots.

Mr. Reis: A…a…there must be. All right. I do not…I haven’t presented it to you obviously. There must be something.

Mr. Hughes: Has anyone seen such a thing? Or am I…?

Mr. Donovan: I‘ll try to make sure I get the lots in order but with the package is a deed to section 20, lot 2, block 46.2, I haven’t got…this is in the Leeman’s file from Michael L. Manzo and Linda J. Manzo to Lori Manzo Leemans. In that deed there is the following recitation, this lot or parcel of land is subject to a continued right of ingress, egress and regress, I guess you have to drive your car backwards to regress, over the existing paved driveway on lot number 3, in favor of lots 1 and 2 as shown on the aforesaid map which is referenced as the Manzo Subdivision Map to New York State Route 9W a public highway.

Mr. Hughes: So we had the numbers the other way around?

Mr. Donovan: I think so. Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Does it say how wide it is? Does it say where it…?

Mr. Donovan: There is no metes and bounds description, no.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so…

Mr. Donovan: Presumably it was always a difficult thing to do but presumably it is shown on the Manzo Subdivision Map from 1991.

Mr. Hughes: But is that legal or is it diagrammatic? 

Mr. Donovan: Is it legal? It’s legal.

Mr. Hughes: Is it binding?

Mr. Donovan: Is it better to have a metes and bounds description? You can do it that way or you could append a…a picture plot plan which is better but this is legal.

Mr. Reis: The survey shows a fifty-foot wide driveway. I assume all have that. 

Mr. Donovan: Is it there, Jerry? Because I don’t have it.

Mr. Canfield: The metes and bounds are here on the deed.

Mr. Hughes: Can you point us to a fifty-foot right of way description somewhere? With metes and bounds? I…I see this part with of it where it talks about snow and anything over four inches of snow so it leads me to believe there is some kind of a maintenance agreement.

Mr. Donovan: And if I continue to read further there is in fact a maintenance agreement. There is one.

Mr. Hughes: I spotted that but I didn’t see any description of about where that road is.

Mr. Donovan: Nope, don’t see it there either although Jerry says he has it.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Manley: Your testimony last month was the applicant had received this property either as a gift or through a…could you just, if I remember, was it a gift?

Mr. Reis: I don’t know how that transpired Mr. Manley.

Mr. Manley: O.K. Do we know how the applicant came in possession of the property? Did they purchase the property? 

Mr. Reis: A…Mr.….a…Mrs. Manzo the mother has and owns this property here. All right? Here’s 9W. O.K.? Here’s the 50-foot driveway. There is a garage over here. This would be lot one that Mr. Hughes referenced there. Lot one has the right of way to go to his driveway, I’m sorry, to his garage. The driveway continues to this lot, which I believe is in your package, which is Mrs. Manzo. Mrs. Leemans is Mrs. Manzo’s daughter. O.K.? How she came upon ownership I…I believe that I’m really…I don’t know for sure, I believe it was given to her as a gift. 

Mr. Donovan: If I can? According to the…a…testimony last month, Mrs. Leemans said it was gifted, the property was given to me back in 1989 from my parents.

Mr. Reis: Thank you for clarifying that.

Mr. Manley: So the real…the real question then in this whole variance for the use variance is going to be a reasonable return for the, you know, for the property. That’s, you know, the real issue is based on the other uses that are allowed and I was just reading some of the ones you had noted here in your letter a…theaters, restaurants, senior citizen housing, affordable house which is also what the County indicated that affordable housing may be a possible use for that zone. Would that not provide a reasonable return if that property was sold for affordable housing let’s say or workplace housing.

Mr. Reis: To answer that question, yes it would but the reality is that no one in the last five years has come up with a offer at all to use it for that purpose or any other B…B zone purpose so there is absolutely, regardless that she got it as a gift or paid a dollar or ten thousand dollars, she hasn’t had the opportunity to get a return on the property. A…the Manzo property again, you’ve given me permission to talk about both, they’re right next door to each other, contiguous a…same issue, the topography, same access a…this is a…four hundred feet from 9W, four hundred feet to the property so for any other business use its really a…has not been conducive.

Mr. Manley: All right then I guess my question to you then would be what do you feel a reasonable return on the property would be? 

Mr. Reis: In dollars and cents?

Mr. Manley: Yes.

Mr. Reis: Forty thousand, fifty thousand, sixty thousand. If you’re looking at it from a zero investment, fifty grand that’s a windfall obviously but a…I don’t know if that…that should make a determination on whether she should receive this variance or not. A…it…

Mr. Manley: Well the whole use variance is based around…

Mr. Reis: Around that.

Mr. Manley: …reasonable return so…

Mr. Reis: Well she hasn’t had a return she hasn’t had an offer. All right? I am the third broker that’s been involved with this a…a…two properties. O.K.? Over a period of…of over five years we’ve had a few offers for residential use but to my letter…that’s why we’re here now.

Mr. Manley: Thank you. 

Mr. Reis: Thank you. 

Ms. Drake: Do you feel with the slope of the property and if they were to build and the size of the property I was trying to figure how many acres it was, is there sufficient room for the septic and parking and a building to construct any other of those uses on this parcel?

Mr. Reis: If…if…if we had a need for it it would be a…I think more of a challenge than for a single-family dwelling district.

Ms. Drake: O.K. what I was trying to figure out was is it site constraint or site restricted to be able to do those other…

Mr. Reis: I would say both. 

Ms. Drake: …uses.

Mr. Reis: To answer your question, I would say both. There’s a tremendous amount of a…a…because of the topography for the property you have a probably, I not I don’t claim to be an engineer but I would say at least a 7-8 degree grade going up away from 9W going to the west. 

Mr. Hughes: How many of these properties contiguous to this proposal belong or are held by the Manzo family in all, same person, multiple people, all of the people that are brothers or sisters or whatever? I see the Manzo subdivision has 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 parcels it appears and together the aggregate of all of those lots is well over six acres. One of them is a substandard lot, which has an existing house on it that appears to have been abandoned, and the one south of this appears to have been abandoned as well and both are not in good repair. The detriment to the one lot if its only fifty-seven feet wide and two hundred feet back, the parent parcel, if you will, the house that exists on 9W is in the form of a horseshoe and it wraps around that fifty foot sliver and butts up next to right of way that you’ve pointed us out to and to another 2.8 acre parcel number 46.22. Is that in the possession of the Manzo family as well?

Mr. Reis: The only counting two lots that the Manzo family which is including the Leemans that family are the two lots that are in question…

Mr. Hughes: And the…

Mr. Reis: …to my knowledge.

Mr. Hughes: …so then could you answer me, Mr. Reis, does this property back here enjoy a right of way over that same property?

Mr. Reis: This piece?

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Reis: That’s the property…that’s the subject property, 46.22 is the subject property, 46.1 (48.1) is the other, is Manzo.

Mr. Hughes: So these are the only two properties that have a deeded right of way and a maintenance agreement over that.

Mr. Reis: 46.1 (48.1) has a right of way on this driveway. 

Mr. Hughes: So all three of them do?

Mr. Reis: Correct. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so…

Mr. Reis: That’s…that was one, two and three in your original statement.

Ms. Gennarelli: 48.1?

Mr. Reis: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: 48.1 Mr. Reis is telling me is the 1.5 acres…

Mr. Reis: That’s Manzo.

Mr. Hughes: And 46.22 is 2.8 acres?

Mr. Reis: That’s Leeman’s.

Mr. Hughes: And then 46.1 (46.21) is the parent house down on the bottom on 9W.  

Mr. Reis: That was Manzo that was sold about a year ago. 

Mr. Hughes: But they still have a right of way over that…?

Mr. Reis: They have a right of way on this driveway to get to their garage.

Mr. Hughes: And then we have these other two parcels that do as well.

Mr. Reis: The subject, right.

Mr. Hughes: Don’t we have another hook in here Counsel with three houses on a common road? That hasn’t been brought up prior to this even though they are not the same family when you have three residences on a common road you have to get an approval from the Town Board and you have to make maintenance agreements…

Mr. Reis: That’s not the Town road this is a driveway.

Mr. Hughes: I’m not suggesting that it was a Town Road.

Mr. Reis: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: You have to go to the Town Board to get an approval for three houses on common drive. 

Mr. Maher: Jerry, if I might on 46.1 (46.21) which is the original Manzo, do they have access on 9W separate from the driveway to the right, to the north.

Mr. Canfield: I don’t remember. I don’t think so Mike. I think that it is the driveway.

Mr. Hughes: The driveway is shared by all three.

Mr. Canfield: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: And in this case, I don’t know why its been overlooked up to this point but a…we can’t do anything with that until you get an approval from the Town Board. Again back to the original positioning of this project you have nothing but residential surrounding this thing right up to the north edge of parcel 53 and 57, which are both, commercial installations and the backs of both of these properties are in the residential district. It’s a legislative issue. Have the Town Board adopt it into the Carter residences and be done with it. If not, you’re going to end up in lots of trouble here with these reciprocal road agreements and snow plowing and maintenance and a dozen other things. 

Mr. Manley: Well the other issue to though Ron is that the…the Master Plan, this a change of use to residential would not be consistent with the Town’s Master Plan. 

Mr. Hughes: Nor the County’s. This…this thing is growing instead of diminishing in problems and I don’t want to have you or your client paint yourself into a corner but you do understand that I don’t think we can even move any further on this because of the three homes on the common drive. Counsel?

Mr. Donovan: I’m…I’m not familiar with that requirement. That’s a specific Town of Newburgh requirement? I’m looking at you Jerry, if you know. 

Mr. Hughes: You have to go to the Town Board to get relief for three houses on a common drive.

Mr. Manley: I believe Mr. Hughes is correct.  

Mr. Canfield: I think you’re right, correct. I can’t cite…I can’t cite a section.

Mr. Donovan: And that’s not in the Zoning Ordinance? It’s some other Town reg’s?

Mr. Canfield: I think it’s in the subdivision of land regulations. 

Mr. Hughes: It is. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K. I’m not familiar with it.

Mr. Canfield: I can research it but I’m not prepared to cite anything for you right now. 

Mr. Hughes: I’m pretty cheap too, I’d bet a few bucks on that. 

Mr. Reis: I’ll make a comment.

Mr. Hughes: We’ve been through this before. Go ahead.

Mr. Reis: This was an approved subdivision.

Mr. Hughes: By whom?

Mr. Reis: By the Town. O.K.?

Mr. Hughes: In what year, do you know?

Mr. Reis: No.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. 

Mr. Reis: A…

Mr. Hughes: Do you have an engineer’s name that did it or…?

Mr. Reis: I’ll have to investigate that, Mr. Hughes. A…but its an approved subdivision, you’ve got three lots that are on this private road a…you’re question about that lot one…

Mr. Hughes: 46.1?

Mr. Reis: 46.1 if it has access from the a…from 9W a…

Mr. Hughes: We were told no that the access…

Mr. Reis: Right.

Mr. Hughes: …came over that driveway.

Mr. Reis: Yeah. Well it was a question. I believe it might be but I can’t swear to it I’m just not sure but I believe there might be. But assuming that this is a…a…

Mr. Hughes: This says that this was ’93 subdivision. 

Mr. Reis: O.K. well…

Mr. Hughes: Which doesn’t make sense because if they gave her the property in ’89 and this has been generated since then how did that happen?

Mr. Reis: Are you asking me that question?

Mr. Hughes: I…I…I’m think out loud, I don’t know where to steer you on this thing. I thought I had given the Board the best advice about an easier way to do this but the further we get into this the more complications there are. If 46.1 has no other way of access into there you have to live with that ingress and egress agreement and the maintenance agreement that goes with it and in order to do that you have to get a special dispensation from the Town Board to allow three homes on a common drive.

Mr. Reis: O.K. well again just looking at the whole picture and trying to be logical about it, I’m not disputing what you’re saying. O.K.? I…I…good point however, if it was a…any of the uses for a business would have that same issue who is using the driveway and so on and so forth, all the points you just made. The…

Mr. Hughes: But you’re trying to remove this from the industrial use and make it a residential use.

Mr. Reis: Which would be a less impact from the Town, less impact from that particular environment, that neighborhood and less traffic than any other use. A single family home, typically two cars, any other use that is permitted would be amplified, I mean, would be a…tremendous amount of more traffic so that…that if I may say that argument or that…that issue its less of an issue with a residential use than it is with the current use.

Mr. Maher: Hey Jerry, if I’m not mistaken if in fact the…the a subdivision was done in ’93 that same requirement for two lots max on a drive was not in place, correct?  

Mr. Canfield: I believe so a…do we have anyone, this is a question, does anyone have before them the original Manzo subdivision.

Mr. Hughes: I didn’t see the original not in anything that I read.

Mr. Canfield: The reason that I ask that question is because I think that original layout and covenants or notes that were placed on that approved subdivision may help clarify some of your confusion whether or not a private road will even exist. I can retrieve that map from my files if you’d like but I think that may clarify some of your questions. 

Mr. Hughes: Well this is just the assessor’s copy of the tax map and I don’t know if that

’93 is the year that it was done or its another indicator.

Mr. Canfield: What confuses me Ron is…

Mr. Hughes: It seems like it was much longer ago than that than ’93.

Mr. Canfield: Yeah, what looking at 46.22 looks like it appears to be, it was created as somewhat of a flag lot.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Canfield: You asked the question before 46.1 is the old Manzo residence with the horse in the front. According to this assessor’s map, the driveway should access 46.1 onto 9W and this portion of the flag here is what creates ingress and egress to 46.22 and 48.1.

Mr. Hughes: It’s just an offset to get there.

Mr. Canfield: That’s what I’m thinking but I think the original subdivision map should clarify that for you.

Mr. Maher: Well how…how does that effect 46.21 when it becomes land locked it appears?

Ms. Drake: Well that’s what I’m thinking 46.1…

Mr. Hughes: That’s a horseshoe.

Ms. Drake: Right but 46.1 has got an arrow to the other side of the fifty-foot wide lot. So I think 46.1 not really where 46.1 is really written. 

Mr. Canfield: That’s why you need to see the original subdivision.

Ms. Drake: So this 46.2….21 is the one coming off with the garage and wrapping around.

Mr. Hughes: This is an abandoned house and this is an abandoned house but see it doesn’t show anyway this to go out to here?

Ms. Drake: But when we’re referring to 46.1 that’s not the right parcel that we’re talking about. 

(Inaudible)

Mr. Donovan: To confuse matters further, if you look at the private road maintenance agreement shows lot 46.1, 46.2 and 46, not 46.22 and not 48.1. 

Mr. Canfield: See another thing Dave too is that this verbiage on this deed references 46.2 which I believe was the parent parcel which is now become 46.21 and .22, so again the original subdivision may help clarify that. 

Mr. Donovan: Let’s hope so. The private road maintenance agreement is dated January 1994 so you would well…

Mr. Hughes: So that makes sense that it was divided in ’93 and written in ’94?

Mr. Donovan: The tax lot numbers don’t seem to match up. 

Mr. Maher: Dated 3/17/91.

Mr. Donovan: And that…

Mr. Maher: From the Schedule A.

Mr. Hughes: And she was gifted in ’89 you’re saying?

Mr. Donovan: Then it says filed in June of ’93.

Mr. Maher: Right.

Mr. Reis: Just a note, folks, 46.1 and 46.21 a…that was recently sold and I happened to be the broker that handled that and that is one lot.

Ms. Drake: No I don’t think so. I think the 46.1 has an arrow pointing to a different lot. 

Mr. Canfield: I concur. I think Brenda is correct. 

Mr. Hughes: What’s it pointing to Brenda?

Mr. Maher: The lot between 47 and 43. 

Mr. Donovan: Ah ha.

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes, it is. Yes it is Brenda.

Mr. Donovan: Old Eagle Eye, I didn’t catch that with my grocery store glasses.

Mr. Hughes: So what Mr. Reis pointed out…Betty…46.2 is the horseshoe and 46.1 is that little parcel in the front that is two parcels down from…

Ms. Gennarelli: But we’re talking about 48.1 and 46.22.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, nope, we’re down on 9W now…

Ms. Gennarelli: But the parcels that are in question…

Mr. Hughes: What Mr. Reis has pointed out, the horseshoe that was the original house is 46.21 and it’s a total of 1.8 acres…

(Ms. Gennarelli approached) 

Mr. Canfield: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: …this one right here, this horseshoe.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. you’re pointing to this. 

Mr. Hughes: This one right here.

Ms. Gennarelli: Right. 

Mr. Hughes: So even at that if this lot and these two lots all have a commonality over this we need another approval besides what we’ve already discussed.

Mr. Maher: I don’t think so.

Mr. Hughes: Why?

Mr. Maher: Because prior the date of the subdivision it was not required for a maximum two lots, two homes on a single road. That’s only newly made I imagine in the last 10 years I believe. 

Mr. Hughes: Oh no, its much longer than that, much longer than that. I know those houses on Cloud Street had the same thing going on and that was in ’89.

Mr. Maher: I believe prior was four on a single; it is now it’s two.

Mr. Hughes: On a private road.

Mr. Maher: No, four was the max on a private drive and then it was changed, I believe, about ten years ago to two.

Mr. Manley: That…that’s correct. It used to be…it used to be, I believe, four. You’re right. 

Mr. Hughes: What I’m saying is three on a driveway and then it goes to the private road not a driveway. This is a driveway. 

Mr. Maher: But at the time of the approval it was allowed. 

Mr. Hughes: I don’t know that to be true. I don’t know. We’ll have to do some research on that. 

Mr. Reis: Ladies and gentlemen, regardless of the a…a…who is using the driveway…I’m just trying to get through some logic here and I’m…I’m trying to be fair and balanced…

Mr. Hughes: It doesn’t always happen in zoning.

Mr. Reis: I understand. All around this property is residential except for the contiguous property to the north a...to the east, south and west we have a single-family dwellings is going to be less traffic with a single-family dwelling proposedly…proposedly if…if this variance is granted…a…there will be less of an impact on the neighborhood, a return on the investment by changing the use it will make it saleable because it just has not been saleable a…for the last five years for the zoning use that it is required. So regardless of who uses it or to answer Mr. Hughes’ a…point a…right now there’s three that have the ability to use it legally a… I fault myself for not being able to answer the one point about this lot in here if they have access off of 9W. I believe they do where that horse was. Where that horse was I think there’s a driveway that a…that goes up the a…a…to the front porch area of that house, if I’m not mistaken.

(Inaudible)

Mr. Gennarelli: Ron, Ron pull that in.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I don’t think that goes on to the 9W on the culvert. I think it goes out to the paved driveway but we can check on that.

Mr. Reis: O.K. did you ask me to wait, Betty?

Mr. Hughes: No, she was given me hell for not using the microphone.

Ms. Gennarelli: Right. O.K.

Mr. Reis: A…my recollection is coming back a little bit, obviously we have to make sure of what I’m going to say is accurate but I believe that the a…front house where the horse used to be which on the tax map is 46.1 (46.21) that there is an existing driveway off of 9W that accesses that property. 

Mr. Hughes: That 46.1…

Ms. Drake: You would mean…

Mr. Hughes: …is this one over here.

Ms. Drake: …46.21.

Mr. Hughes: This is the horseshoe parcel where the horse used to be.

Mr. Reis: The horse used to be right where this ‘1’ is, right in front this property. 

Mr. Hughes: Right but this horseshoe parcel…

Mr. Reis: Yeah. 

Mr. Hughes: …is that whole parcel where the horse used to be.

Mr. Reis: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: This 46.1 is this parcel over here. You see the arrow? 

Mr. Reis: Yeah, I didn’t…I didn’t realize that.

Mr. Hughes: We didn’t either until Brenda pointed out. 

Mr. Reis: O.K. you sure…you’re that that’s that?

Mr. Hughes: Well you can see the arrow…

Mr. Reis: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: And you can see the little…the little spot here.

Mr. Reis: It’s all part of that.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah and then this number here is this big horseshoe and it’s going to contains 1.8 acres in that horseshoe. You said you just sold that property recently, was it 1.8 acres? 

Mr. Reis: I believe so. I’m not sure. 

Mr. Hughes: So that’s the best…


Mr. Reis: But I know that there is a driveway between a…on this border here. O.K.?  

Which access that house.

Ms. Drake: Jerry would the Town have the file for the original subdivision that was done?

Mr. Hughes: Or the County.

Mr. Canfield: They have that.

Ms. Drake: That would be something we would be able to get and look for a…a meeting next month?

Mr. Canfield: Yes, we have 

Ms. Drake: To look at between now and next month that subdivision map.

Mr. Canfield: …the a…yes. 

Mr. Hughes: I’m…I’m still…I’m…Counsel? Do we even have the right to rule on this in a use…in a use situation? I…I don’t see where it qualifies.

Mr. Donovan: Then you vote no. But yet…I mean, you have an application before you, we talked about it last month, the ability of the applicant to seek zone change or the use variance. They’ve elected the remedy to come here and seek the use variance. The standards are pretty if you think they’ve met them you vote yes. If you think they haven’t you vote no. But one of your choices isn’t we don’t like it go away.

Mr. Hughes: No, it’s not that, I mean, to me I can see what he is trying to go for. From where I’m sitting and this is just my perspective of it why wouldn’t you take all of those residences there not just this particular applicant and add it to the residential district and never have to have any of them come back here again? You’re making more work and more trouble…

Mr. Reis: We’re not…we’re not trying to set a precedent here. We’re asking for…

Mr. Hughes: Well we’re trying to avoid one. 

Mr. Reis: And I...I…

Mr. Hughes: To give you a use variance is setting a precedent that has never even been thought of around here before. But to add it to an existing residential district is your path of least resistance and you seem to be adverse to it. I don’t understand it. But again, this is just my perspective of it maybe I’m missing the big picture.

Mr. Reis: O.K. A…this…

Mr. Hughes: You’ve served on one of these Boards before?

Mr. Reis: Yes, yes I have. 

Mr. Hughes: Have you ever had an applicant come to you and ask you to do what you’re asking?

Mr. Reis: Similar, similar but we always made of a…you’re asking me a question.

Mr. Hughes: I wont’ ask you whether it was approved I’ll leave it hanging.

Mr. Reis: It was.

Mr. Hughes: It was?

Mr. Reis: I get that out quick but not that should sway you one way or the other but I…I…I can’t see that I mean…you’re bringing up what we did…

Mr. Hughes: Two things, Jerry, wouldn’t that be the easiest way to add it to the residential district for your purposes too? Without turning the whole cart upside down we’ll have every other property on 9W in here looking for a use variance and Counsel, do we dare even think of it?

Mr. Canfield: I have no answer for that question.

Mr. Hughes: Can we agree again twice in one night or…?

Mr. Donovan: I mean, if you don’t think he’s met his burden of proof then you vote no. 

Mr. Hughes: Could…could you reiterate the burden of proof so that everyone knows what we’re looking at here, the public especially?

Mr. Donovan: I don’t have it off the top of my head but I do have it in front of me so bear with me a second. 

Mr. Hughes: Sure.

Mr. Canfield: I do know Ron though there’s not that many other vacant parcels around there.

Mr. Hughes: Right.

Mr. Canfield: To answer your question. 

Mr. Hughes: Especially residential.

Mr. Canfield: Well I’m talking about the likelihood of another applicant coming back before you asking for this very same variance, that’s what I’m saying. I don’t believe that there’s that many other vacant parcels in that area.

Mr. Hughes: You only have to go four parcel and the same thing starts again leap frog every other lot right on up through the old firehouse. 


Mr. Donovan: Let me just recite like I did last meeting what 267 Subdivision B (2) of the New York State Town Law says ‘No such use variance shall be granted by a Board of Appeals without a showing by the applicant that applicable zoning regulations and restrictions have caused unnecessary hardship. In order to prove such unnecessary hardship the applicant shall demonstrate to the Board of Appeals that for each and every permitted use under the zoning regulations for the particular district where the property is located: 1) The applicant cannot realize a reasonable return provided that lack of return is substantial as demonstrated by competent financial evidence. 2) That the alleged hardship related to the property in question is unique and does not apply to a substantial portion of the district or neighborhood. 3) That the requested use variance if granted will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood. And, 4) that the alleged hardship has not been self-created.    

Mr. Reis: I believe that we’ve a…we’ve a…concluded in the letter that we’ve met all of those standards to a…to accommodate what you need to make a…a…a…decision. A…a return on investment there’s been absolute no interest, I’m repeating myself a...to a…a to sell it as a business use. We have had offers and a…you know, for a residential use that we have not been able to go forward with obviously. A… we’re talking about a total of a…a one and a half acres on one lot and two and three quarter acres which includes driveway which is three quarters of an acre that’s a…I guessing about a hundred acres a…it’s a very unique situation. We have a driveway that comes in that accesses these two driveways to answer Mr. Hughes’ a…a…a point and I…and I…I understand it and a…a…I respect that point of view but this request is a set on its own merit and not a...what…obviously it hasn’t happened before the likelihood of it happening again in the immediate area of these a…two lots is highly unlikely. I don’t think there is another lot, looking at the tax map, there’s no other lot that has a driveway that accessing two properties a…to the rear that are four hundred feet off the road. A…to utilize it as a a business it just does not lend itself to that. Why it wasn’t included with the residential properties to the rear I…I have no idea. I have no control over that but for you folks to be able to make a determination and say we can use it as a residential dwelling use I can’t understand why that would not be a a logical reasonable use of the property.  The…the impact to the neighbors none, highly, highly less than other use that it is zoned for currently.

Ms. Drake: It doesn’t really matter whether we’d like it to be a residential or don’t like it…

Mr. Reis: I understand.

Ms. Drake: …it doesn’t get into that get into that. It gets into whether there is a use that’s permitted would work and that’s one reason why I asked the question do you feel that any of those other uses with the site constraints would fit and maybe it would be worthwhile to have a couple of layouts done with some of those uses showing whether you were to do a senior housing or something you would need to excise septic system, number of parking spaces, too steep, show a couple of layouts showing that those designs would not work and would also be here for other variances might help your situation if you were to pursue this.

Ms. Manley: And I would agree with what Mrs. Drake indicated the one hang-up that I see here that I keep going back to is the reasonable return for the applicant to demonstrate that and I don’t see anything and it specifically speaks of competent financial evidence. There’s no financial evidence, that I see, that shows that and when I say evidence, an appraisal of the property, a…having a professional come in and state what the return would be would it be sold for a bank property or, you know, that’s really what I need to see to make sure that that property won’t get a reasonable return. Because if you’re saying forty to sixty thousand dollars, if the property is sold for forty thousand dollars for a commercial use that’s a reasonable return, in my estimation. 

Mr. Reis: I…may I respond? I agree with what you’re saying one hundred percent, Mr. Manley, however it’s been on the market for five years with three different brokers, zero interest for the current zoning...zero, none, nada which equates to no return on your investment. A…I stand here before you, I…I’m a broker for a…thirty-two years and have been marketing these properties for three years well almost four and again prior to me there were two other brokers. Point being is no interest at all and we’ve had interest for residential use so I can’t...I can’t deliver to you a…we’ve had offers for ten thousand or thirty or forty thousand because it just did not happen. And, if it happened we would have sold it I would not be standing before you. We’ve had several offers for an interest for residential p.s. that’s why we’re standing and…and…before you looking for some relief.

Mr. Manley: But just because you have an offer for that doesn’t necessitate granting of a variance. There has to be certain conditions that have to be met in order to achieve that threshold.

Mr. Reis: A…I believe…  

Mr. Manley: And I…I just believe we are at that point yet where you meet that threshold and what Mr. Hughes suggested it may be easier to get the zoning changed through the Town because they are the legislative body that can…can make that change where they don’t necessarily have to meet that threshold that we have to meet in order to grant the variance. 

Mr. McKelvey: If…if you could get in to that residential district you wouldn’t be here. 

Mr. Hughes: You wouldn’t need any variances whatsoever.

Mr. McKelvey: You wouldn’t need any variances.

Mr. Hughes: They would take and make a lot line change on their map and stamp it residential and you’d have two customers.

Ms. Drake: The other option being both lots are vacant lots a rate of…a plan could show the two lots combined as one lot for meeting the needs of any of those allowed uses so…

Mr. Maher: Do you currently have an offer on the table contingent upon the approval here?

Mr. Reis: No. They a…withdrew their offers not being able to tell that buyer that a…we should have a…a variance within two months or three months. I didn’t have the confidence to tell him and I didn’t want him to expect that I could produce it and they didn’t want to take the time and the energy and the money so to answer you’re question, no.  

Mr. Maher: Was there a conversation that if in fact you’d did prevail you would contact them to offer the property again?

Mr. Reis: Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: You’ve all seen that…what the County said to them?

Mr. Hughes: Could you read that into the record please?

Mr. McKelvey: If you want it read. It says, Possible Alternatives: Although new single-family residences are not permitted uses under the B zone, affordable housing is listed as use number 13 in Column D of Schedule 7 of the Town of Newburgh Table of Use and Bulk Requirements, uses subject to site plan review by the Planning Board. The applicant may wish to consider providing affordable housing on the project site, which would not require a use variance. 

Mr. Hughes: There are other options as well if a client decided to put in a duplex you need to have a hundred thousand square feet and you have that with the acre and a half that you there if you deduct the road. Can you deduct the roads, Jerry? And then you only have two parcels on one driveway and you don’t need to go get that special thing from the Town Board. Now Mr. Maher has a different opinion he thinks that the law was changed and that you’re coddled or cradled in that protection zone. I don’t believe its so. I think the law was changed a long time ago.

Mr. Reis: Well, in due respect, the owner’s property have been taking on this since a…the 1990’s as two separate lots, to force them to a…combine the lots to accommodate just doesn’t seem a…American to me. I don’t know.

Mr. Hughes: I’m looking at the bottom line. I don’t know if it’s an American thing but I’m looking at finance.

Mr. Reis: I understand.

Mr. Hughes: You do understand the five (four) points that the Counsel suggested and I think you missed two or three of them. You didn’t substantially indicate the money part of it and its not that unique a situation there’s a dozen other buildings between that property and what’s that road that goes up by in front of the firehouse, Jerry? Is that Lattintown? Across from Mary Jane’s between Lattintown and this particular property there’s a dozen of the those same things going on, leapfrog every other lot right on up to the corner so its not like it’s a unique thing in that area or a unique thing in the Town. Part of the things that you have to prove are those five (four) points is that its unique and its site specific to this lot only and you don’t have that. So you’ve missed three of the five (four) points from where I sit but again that’s just my opinion.

Mr. Reis: I…I have to address what a…you’re saying. If you don’t have an interest at all over an extended period of time that takes care, in my opinion, takes of the a…financial hardship. Each a var…

Mr. Hughes: Hardship is a whole different thing let’s not go there that’s…

Mr. Reis: Say that again.

Mr. Hughes: Financial hardship is a whole different subject matter; we’re talking about reasonable return not a hardship.  

Mr. Reis: Oh, I’m sorry, thank you, I agree with you. If you don’t have any interest, zero interest a…there’s no rate of return. Now you can get a…a certified appraiser in here to say its worth x amount of dollars if somebody was interested in buying it but no ones been interested in buying it.    

Mr. Hughes: Do you attribute that to the flat market or is there other factors?

Mr. Reis: Well five years, we hit its peak and we were coming down five years ago. O.K.? We are in a very flat market as most of you probably are aware of but again there’s no interest now and five years back a…that takes care of, I believe, that takes of that portion of what we’re supposed to bring to the Board. What is the other…?

Mr. Hughes: You mean the reasonable return part of it?

Mr. Reis: The reasonable return, yes.

Mr. Hughes: How do you equate that? I don’t understand.

Mr. Reis: If you have no interest and you can’t sell it for any amount of money… All right? There’s no interest, nobody made an offer for ten thousand.

Mr. Hughes: Now…now you’re really throwing things into the formula here that don’t add up. Let’s state with a continuity here, you said that you had somebody that wanted to give you forty grand for both of the parcels?

Mr. Reis: No, I didn’t say that at all.

Mr. Hughes: Oh.

Mr. Reis: Mr. Manley asked me what a…what do I think would be a reasonable return on these. And I said, forty, fifty, sixty. O.K.? But we haven’t had any offers, twenty, thirty, none so that in my feeling, my thought, my interpretation of that is there’s if there’s no interest, there’s no rate of return there isn’t any.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. freeze that thought right there.

Mr. Reis: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: You’ve got your prospect of selling these lots, if you were to take that lot and add it to the district behind it and put the sign up for forty, fifty or sixty like you said wouldn’t it sell without having to go through all of these contortions here?

Mr. Reis: As a residential lot?

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I mean, you’re not trying to sell it as commercial.

Mr. Reis: I am ninety-nine and nine tenths confident, yes that we would sell it.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. So then why won’t you have it added to the residential zone behind it instead of persisting on this? 

Mr. Reis: There is some reason I’m trying to recall all our conversations. I met with Canfield and the attorneys and the engineers.

Mr. Hughes: Well I do recall, you’ve back and forth…

Mr. Reis: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: …between all the buildings.

Mr. Reis: And…and somehow this…this a…

Mr. Hughes: Are they suggesting that this is the way to do it?

Mr. Reis: I…I…I…somehow this is why I’m here. I don’t know how it came about.

Mr. Hughes: You might want to ask them if they consider it to be a legislative issue or a political issue because other than that I can’t see any reason for it. 

Mr. Reis: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: We’re trying to steer you in the right direction. I really…

Mr. Reis: Oh, I really appreciate that.

Mr. Hughes: I don’t want to paint you in a corner.

Mr. Reis: Thank you. 

Mr. Hughes: And I don’t want any of our other Boards to paint you in corner to me there is an easier way to do this thing.

Mr. Reis: Right, well if you…if you can’t see your way doing it then we will pursue the other.

Mr. Hughes: Well its not just me we’ve got seven people here. 

Mr. McKelvey: You spent a lot of time going to this procedure when you didn’t have to.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah. It’s a legislative issue, Mike. This thing is not anything magic to do its not a miracle. It’s changing the line by a legislative process. Counsel what would it take to run through the Board two or three months?

Mr. Donovan: I don’t represent the Town Board I’m not going to…I don’t know.

Mr. Hughes: I mean, if you want to heat on them like they are putting the heat on you to stay here tell them to take a breath of fresh air and get the pen out. And you can tell them who told you, Hughes.

Mr. Canfield: Just one thing that Mr. Reis had stated and I’d like to clarify the record. You are not here on my advice. I only brought before this Board if they would hear the application without building plans. So I know this is recorded and I’d like it on the record that you are not here on my advice. O.K.? 

Mr. Hughes: And we’re not saying…

Mr. Canfield: I just wanted to clarify that.

Mr. Hughes: And we’re not saying that any particular Board or person is pushing you but to me it seems a little bit confusing why you don’t take the easy path around us.

Mr. Reis: A…no, I didn’t mean to a…say or…or imply a…that Mr. Canfield suggested I do this. O.K.? A…

Mr. Hughes: Counsel, would we dare recommend he contact Mark Taylor and have him talk it out with him and see what he has to say or… No?

Mr. Donovan: Let’s see, we can either vote to approve or vote to deny.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. well then let it rip. 

Mr. Reis: Can I get…can I get five positive votes please?

Mr. Maher: I…I think what Mrs. Drake was trying to explain earlier obviously in the real estate business appraisals come out for commercial and residential properties, correct? So if you had a an appraisal done for this piece of property as a commercial piece of property and it came back at a certain dollar value and then you had one done as a residential which I believe is what you are trying to get to and it came back at a certain value obviously that may help your case in some manner. It may hurt it also but I think that would help the Board realize that the factor is an actual return on the investment for commercial versus residential.

Ms. Drake: Well what I was actually trying to get at is would the properties actually stick a use of that type and if the…if the way its configured, the slope, the soils and the parking would not even allow you to put those uses on the property then obviously if you sold it for that for a use as permitted and they can’t build on it then there’s no return value on there because it cannot be built on for those uses. That’s what I was trying to get at. 

Mr. Hughes: See your geographic constraints that has you blocked into a corner. If the properties that we’re talking about were at the same level as the commercial properties next door that thing would probably be gobbled up in a heartbeat but because you have that elevation going up and back for somebody to do something in the zone that allows that particular use they would have to dig that down to where it was level with 9W. You’ve got quite a problem there. I have nothing else. Thank you for answering all those questions. I…I wish I could do…

Mr. Reis: Thank you for your time and energy. 

Ms. Drake: Well I guess before we can decide whether we’re going to vote, would you like us to vote tonight or would you like to present more information, us holding the Public Hearing open for you to present more information at next month’s meeting. What would you like?

Mr. Reis: If you could give…well let me ask you a question if I may? A…I heard what you said Mr. Maher and I appreciate that comment, Mr. Manley about the return on the…on the investment and I…I…I…continue to go back to a the same response about zero interest. A…I do appraisals, I’m not a Certified Appraiser but I do appraisals for many a…many issues and I come up with values. There’s a highest and best use and its determined for this…these particular two lots because of a lack of interest for commercial or business use and a fairly good response in spite of the market conditions that there is a fairly good response for residential use. Other than that what does the Board need for the applicant for you to make a positive determination? Can you tell me specifically?

Mr. Manley: Well I don’t think that’s a question that you see…I mean, you’re the individual that has to provide the documentation to us and I…I think its unfair to say, you know, what could you provide that would result in a positive response from the Board. I think that you…

Mr. Reis: Well…

Mr. Manley: …would need to submit the documentation, credible, you know, financial documentation that makes your case, whatever that you feel that is...

Mr. Reis: O.K. Other than the financial part of the Towns a…the alleged hardship and unique a…wait a minute, the financial part of it. O.K.? Are you satisfied with the fact that there’s no interest, zero interest, are you as a Board satisfied with that being met?

Mr. Maher: Well before I answer that let me ask you a question? You market a piece of property?

Mr. Reis: I’m sorry. 

Mr. Maher: You market a piece of property for sale, correct?

Mr. Reis: Yes.

Mr. Maher: What’s to say that a sign wasn’t placed on 9W advertising it and that’s all the extent that was done? Is that possible that that could happen? Unlikely but possible, correct? So he should put a sign out front, never advertised paper, MLS, whatever the case would be…it would generate a little interest, correct? Obviously from just putting a sign there.  

Mr. Reis: O.K.

Mr. Maher: So if in fact, we have no proof that anything further was done or any other than the letter that you stated that you had stated there was no interesting it. How far did you actually go? Did you put a sign out there? Was it listed in MLS? Your predecessors that listed it before, how far did they go? What other opportunities are there out there? Like Mrs. Drake said, as far as an engineer said this doesn’t work in a purchase in a commercial piece of property the value is x as a residential I feel its y. That type of documentation or evidence you can present that we can look at and feel comfortable with rather than saying there’s no interest in it.

Mr. Reis: O.K. 

Mr. Hughes: It’s not just a matter of P& L, if you’ll follow this…?

Mr. Reis: A matter of what?   

Mr. Hughes: Of profit and loss, P & L its not a spreadsheet item of reasonable return. Part of the elements that need to be satisfied for a use variance is that you have to prove to this Board that there isn’t anyone of those allowable uses that you could match to that property other than this. And I don’t know that you can do that reasonably. I…I don’t know what to tell Mr. Manley. Maybe this is the phrase, you have to give us all the excuses that you’ve covered your work and if there is nothing there in all of those uses that you could put on that same property. That’s difficult to do its almost impossible.

Mr. Donovan: No, I’m not interested in elaborating. I just want to be clear that, you know, certain Board Members have said we…we want certain…we’d be interested in seeing other additional information. I don’t want the inference to be drawn though that upon submission of that information it will be a favorable vote. You know, because it depends, it depends on what’s in the information; it depends on what individual Board Members think when they receive the information and they review the information.

Mr. Reis: I understand.

Mr. Hughes: Could I suggest that…?

Mr. Manley: That was my concern when the applicant’s representative said what can I get to you that perhaps would make…

Mr. Donovan: Right. 

Mr. Manley: …give you a positive response and just because you submit something doesn’t necessarily mean it’s going to give you a positive response.

Mr. Reis: That was not a fair comment to make to you folks. Thank you. I understand that. O.K. I guess it can’t hurt to request that you keep it open and if we should change our minds and go in the other direction that you had suggested last month, Mr. Hughes, I can always do that.

Ms. Drake: You can withdraw the application.

Mr. Reis: Right. Thank you.

Ms Drake: I’ll make a motion to hold the Public Hearing open...

Mr. Donovan: Again so that would be until June.

Ms. Gennarelli: June 23rd.

Ms. Drake: …to June 23rd.

Mr. McKelvey: June 23rd is it?

Ms. Drake: Yes.

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: Now that doesn’t prevent the applicant from doing his homework and finding out a less severe way to obtain his goal and I’ll leave it at that. You need to convince those guys, it’s their responsibility as a legislative issue and redraw where the residential district is in that area of the Town. 

Mr. Hughes: I’ll second that, holding the Public Hearing open and wish you luck in convincing them to wake up.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. This is on the Leeman’s.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Mr. McKelvey: Yes

 (Time Noted – 9:35 PM)
Mr. Donovan: And they will need to vote on the Manzo one.

Mr. Hughes: And the same thing on the second part.

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion on the Manzo lot to hold the Public Hearing open to June 23rd.

Mr. Hughes: I’ll second that.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Mr. McKelvey: Yes

Mr. Reis: Thank you for your time. I appreciate it.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for your patience.

Mr. Reis: Thank you. 

PRESENT ARE:

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

            MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT:   GRACE CARDONE

ALSO PRESENT: 
DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

                                    GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE 

(Time Noted – 9:37 PM)

ZBA MEETING – May 26, 2011                      (Time Noted – 9:37 PM)



DANIEL HESIDENCE


28 WARING ROAD, NBGH







(65-3-13) R-3 ZONE

OTHER BOARD BUSINESS

Mr. McKelvey: We have one other item here. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Do you want to do that now John, or after the other votes?

Mr. McKelvey: It’s up to you; we have another request here for …

Ms. Gennarelli: Hesidence.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah, Daniel Hesidence wants an extension on their variance.

Mr. Hughes: I believe he’s already received one and we are prohibited from allowing this.

Mr. Donovan: And the problem is 185-55-D says unless construction is commenced and diligently pursued within six months of the granting of the variance or Special Permit, such variance or Special Permit shall become null and void. This six-month period may be extended for one additional six-month period. So we don’t have any…

Mr. Hughes: Is there an outset date on completion of 18-months on that as well?

Mr. Donovan: No it would just be the Building Permit, dictated by the Building Permit, the length of the Building Permit.

Mr. Hughes: I don’t think we can so I’m going to move that we deny it.

Ms. Drake: Denying the request for an extension. I’ll second that.

Ms. Gennarelli: Do we need a vote on that?

Mr. Donovan: We’ve got a motion and a second let’s vote on it. 

Mr. Hughes: Discussion? We have to offer it to discussion.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes, is there any discussion?

Mr. Manley: I would at least let him know that he would need to reapply?

Mr. McKelvey: Reapply.

Mr. Hughes: And he has to do the mailings and the whole soup to nuts.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: They haven’t started anything? Are there Permits issued for that?

Ms. Gennarelli: He doesn’t have a Permit.

Mr. Hughes: Nothing?

Mr. Donovan: There’s a letter indicating he’s got some problems with his neighbors apparently.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, the letter says the same.

Mr. McKelvey: There is nothing we can do about that though we already granted one extension. 

Mr. Hughes: No further discussion?

Mr. McKelvey: Roll call.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Mr. McKelvey: Yes

Mr. McKelvey: In the interest of saving time we want to converse with our attorney on anything that might be legal. We ask you to go out in the hallway and we’ll call you back. 
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END OF MEETING                                           (Time Noted – 9:56 PM)

Mr. McKelvey: You’ve all read the minutes from the last meeting? 

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion we approve the minutes.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Mr. McKelvey: All those in favor?

Aye – Mr. Manley, Mr. McKelvey, Ms. Drake, Mr. Hughes. 

Ms. Eaton: I abstain.

Mr. Maher: I abstain.

Mr. McKelvey: Any other business?

No response.

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the meeting.

Mr. McKelvey: All in favor?

Aye All

Mr. McKelvey: Opposed?

No response.

Mr. McKelvey: The meeting is adjourned.
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